


We have created a unique Sri Lankan brand,  a brand like no other,  one of the Sri Lankan brands.



Ranjith Pandithage,  Chairman of Diesel & Motor Engineering PLC  puts it all into context on page 06.



D Brand. 



It is the essence of 
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OVERVIEW

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Results for the year

12,687,289

344,444

205,093

48,400

3,280,800

1,906,343

1.62

19.55

1.66

4.24

5.24

4.51

Position at the year end

1,657,151

5,831,158

867

1.26:1

1,073,875

Per share   

4.00

16.95

88.75

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

01 02 03 04 05
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OVERVIEW

CHAIRMAN & CEO’S REVIEW

high standards of 

Changing Lives 

situations and face unexpected challenges 

fuel aspirations and hopes within people 

instrumentation, circuit protection 

power engineering sector where the 

Unsettled Economies 

two major target groups of the organisation. 
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OVERVIEW

CHAIRMAN & CEO’S REVIEW

A Challenging Year for Dimo

conditions.  Despite such conditions, 

performance though moderate, was 

Rs. 2.50 per share. 

Zooming Costs

fundamental in the context of a high interest 

to increasing the costs of some of the 

Building Relationships

relationship with our customers. Dimo has 

superior after care which continues long 

Seeking New Areas of Growth 

products to its growing portfolio.

Growing New Markets 
Dimo continued to expand into the 
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OVERVIEW

CHAIRMAN & CEO’S REVIEW

doorstep with the opening of these 

the need for customers located in these 

Investing in People and 
Technology 

in training programmes for its staff. 

and the conduct of its proceedings has 

offered free of charge for all students and 

that is much recognised and sought after. 

to commence specialised training for 

sought after training and also meet an 

and the continuous efforts to upgrade 

new principals and new products.
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OVERVIEW

CHAIRMAN & CEO’S REVIEW

Confidence Grows

in strategic new areas that complement its 

growth for the future.

in the accolades that external institutions 

reporting in the same competition.

A Year of Consolidation 

draw on all its resources to ensure that it 

enhancing growth.

Rupee continue to appreciate, that will affect 

faced similar challenges in the past and is 

Council has come out with important inputs 

word of appreciation for managing in 

of immense satisfaction. 

A.R. Pandithage

Chairman, Managing Director/
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OVERVIEW

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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1. A.R. Pandithage

2. A.G. Pandithage

3. A.N. Algama

4. S.C. Algama

5. Dr. H. Cabral**

6. R.A. Ebell*

7. B.C.S.A.P. Gooneratne

8. Dr. U. Liyanage**

9. A.M. Pandithage*

10. T.G.H. Peries

11. R. Seevaratnam**

12. R.C. Weerawardane

* Non-Executive Directors

** Independent Non-Executive Directors

Audit Committee:

Remuneration Committee:

Nomination Committee:

Group Management Committee:
Executive Director,

General Manager (Passenger Vehicle Service),
General Manager (Sales & Service Commercial Vehicles),

General Manager (Tyres) Executive 
Director General Manager (Finance & Controlling),

General Manager (Auto Components, Power Tools & 

Outdoor Equipment), R.C. Weerawardane - Executive Director. 

OVERVIEW

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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OVERVIEW

GROUP MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

01

05

02

06

10

Chairman

 Executive Director

General Manager - Passenger Vehicle Service

 General Manager - Sales & Service Commercial Vehicles 

 General Manager - Tyres

Executive Director 

General Manager - Finance & Controlling

General Manager - Auto Components, 

   Power Tools & Outdoor Equipment

10 R.C. Weerawardane - Executive Director
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

VISION & STRATEGY

Inclusive Approach

The Catalyst

Intellectual Capital

gaining, caring, managing and retaining 

a world-class Principal and Dimo, with its 

and growth through the entire range of 

processes in place. 

Business Composition

The Foundation and the Pillars

strength in the march towards reaching 

capital on the pillars of enterprise 

Strategy Formulation & 
Review Process

strategies and formulation of new 

Management Committee and Heads of 



trust
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Sale of Brand New Passenger Vehicles,  4WD Vehicles,  Commercial Vehicles,  Special Purpose Vehicles and 

Pre-Owned Passenger Vehicles
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Industry Overview [Vehicles]

transportation is increasing, the 

newer models. (Source: Central Bank Annual 

Report 2007)

the tariff on petrol passenger cars and 

reconstruction programmes. 

(Negenahira Navodaya)

increase its presence in this growth area in 

upward pressure on interest rates, and 

CLASS OF VEHICLE Total Vehicle
Population

2007 2007

22,603 361,211

43,068 361,727

182,508 1,604,648

2,637 79,870

5,193 193,380

18,408 262,584

21,346 221,326

2,129 41,048

297,892 3,125,794

(

VEHICLES
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Passenger Cars - Mercedes-Benz

We continue to sponsor the Mercedes-

generates great enthusiasm for the 

Pre-owned Vehicles

hampers the growth of this sector of the 

cars imported using permits with that of 

opportunities for the sale of new cars, 

TATA Commercial Vehicles

although the customer reach and 

Despite the fall in total industrial 

economic conditions. 

Operational Review [Vehicles]

VEHICLES

[Source: Customs Tariff Guide (for Petrol Passenger cars & 
SUV over 2000 CC)]
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consolidate its position in the commercial 

island wide. 

order to respond to customer complaints 

sector in the near future

Light Commercial Vehicles

decline was the increased competition 

similar features as that of the higher priced 

is targeting the staff transportation and 

its growth in sales. 

imposed on the importation of motor 

TATA Passenger Vehicles

MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
VEHICLES
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an unmatched personalised after sales 

Future plans for this sector include 

professionals at the stepping stone of 

Chrysler and Jeep

less than expected performance in this 

continued sales of the two most popular 

MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
VEHICLES
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Repair of Passenger and Commercial Vehicles, Sale of Vehicle Spare Parts, Accessories, Components & Tyres

BF Goodrich
Bhagat Forge Ltd.
Bimetal Bearings Ltd.

Bosch Ltd. 

Daimler Regional Logistic Centre

Michelin
MRF

MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
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Industry Overview [Vehicle Parts and Services]

MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Franchise Parts

Komatsu, Mahindra & Mahindra, Bomag & 

Class. We also offer Engine Management 

is in the increased sale of genuine parts. 

appointment of these franchise dealers at 

the launching of a Call Centre, introducing 

is expecting a higher growth from this 

reconstruction of the Eastern Region 

Non-Franchise Parts

of spares & accessories to the commercial 

to consolidate its position in this sector and 

Tyres

Operational Review [Vehicle Parts and Services]

segment on pages 16 to 20.

VEHICLE PARTS AND SERVICES
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

continued to face intense competition 

with the low switching costs to consumers 

sector, with the exception of premium 

Tyre Retreading

imported from China. Here, the power of 

Vehicle Service

Furthermore, as planned and outlined in 

line growth. 

personnel and foresee this as a serious 

some potential in the increased demand 

VEHICLE PARTS AND SERVICES



DIESEL & MOTOR ENGINEERING PLC Annual Report 2007/0824

Sale of Power Tools and  Accessories, Lamps, Lighting Fittings and Accessories

Zenoah

MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Industry Overview [Lighting & Power Tools]

result of the slow growth in the domestic 

(Source: Central 

Bank Annual Report 2007)

against the Euro, as most of the imports are 

from European countries this was a serious 

LIGHTING & POWER TOOLS
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Lighting

and industrial users for their switching, 

protection and lighting needs.  We offer 

increase sales. Consolidation of the dealer 

augment and strengthen our presence in 

Operational Review [Lighting & Power Tools]

in condominium and housing projects 

people will lead to increased demand for 

further penetrate the modular switch 

Power Tools

including professional power tools, 

result of the depreciation of the Rupee 

against the Euro resulted in an erosion of 

margins on these products.  

MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
LIGHTING & POWER TOOLS
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

and care of these products.

condominiums, warehouses and factories 

augurs well for the growth of sales of 

power tools.  

selected dealers. 

LIGHTING & POWER TOOLS
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Sale & Service of Earth Moving Machinery, Road Construction Machinery, Forklifts, Racking Systems, Tractors, Pumps, 

Dock Levellers, Car Parking Systems and Harvesters

Komatsu Ltd.

Mahindra & Mahindra Ltd.

   Pte Ltd.

MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Industry Overview [Construction & Material Handling Machinery]

expansion of condominium, housing 

and shopping complex projects, which 

supported growth momentum in this sector. 

period of time during the latter half of 

on particular growth areas within the 

implementation of infrastructure projects. 

augurs well for the growth of this sector. 

sewerage sector was the importance of 

regulations for the water sector within the 

this sector. 

come in the form of cheaper products from 

warning to future growth potential in the 

(Source: Central Bank Annual Report 2007)

CONSTRUCTION & MATERIAL HANDLING MACHINERY
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Operational Review [Construction & Material Handling Machinery]

Construction Machinery 
Dimo is the one of the main suppliers of 

Storage and Material Handling

addition to our product range was the car 

Responding to the need for modern and 

good future growth due to the expected 

pallets for a wide spectrum of customers.

Causes for concern for this sector in future 

Agri-Machinery

sales operation through its island-wide 

promote our products, a sales campaign 

was launched with the assistance of our 

principal Mahindra & Mahindra.

MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
CONSTRUCTION & MATERIAL HANDLING MACHINERY
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

introduce are the range of Mahindra & 

Fluid Management Systems

cheaper Chinese products. Furthermore, 

competition within the sector has 

imported products in the past. 

We are planning to re-launch the Demag 

cranes and accessories, and to extend 

water, sewerage and waste water treatment 

lead to greater growth in the future.

unit was a series of technical sessions to 

the range of products and total solutions 

expected to increase in the future as a 

CONSTRUCTION & MATERIAL HANDLING MACHINERY
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Telecommunication Solutions, UPS Equipment, Medical Engineering Solutions, Diesel Engines for Marine Propulsion & Rail Traction, 

Power Engineering and Building Technologies

Carl Zeiss Meditec
Challenger Electronics
Draeger Medical

PK Electronics
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Industry Overview [Diversified Activities]

Telecommunications Sector 
Environment

telecommunications sector continued 

(Source - Central Bank Annual Report - 2007)

Power Systems Sector 
Environment

in 2006.

(Source - Central Bank Annual Report - 2007)

Power Engineering Sector 
Environment

due to the low rainfall in catchment areas 

ECONOMIC SECTORS 2007

Telecommunication Sector

931,737
1,810,322

13.70

7,983,489
202,348

Power Generation (Energy Sector)
2,443
1,207

548
3

116
567

Medical Equipment Sector
619

11,442
66,866
68,702

 1.92

Source - Central Bank Annual Report - 2007

DIVERSIFIED ACTIVITIES
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

consumption in the general purpose 

commissioned during the second half of 

plants and another potential coal power 

plant of 500 MW is under consideration in 

(Source - Central Bank Annual Report - 2007)

Medical Industrial Environment

there is still an untapped potential in the 

ensuring that all patients get the proper 

donor agencies such as the World Health 

(Source - Central Bank Annual Report - 2007)

DIVERSIFIED ACTIVITIES
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Operational Review [Diversified Activities]

Telecommunication System

and related applications, solutions for call 

centres, telephone instruments, solutions 

of customers.

of strategic relationships formed with 

Power Systems

traction, marine propulsion and industries 

refrigeration solutions for production 

processes & storage facilities.

Power Engineering

Power engineering solutions and Building 

commission a Building Management 

succeeded in securing two major power 

also to commission and install a state-of-the-

industries. 

DIVERSIFIED ACTIVITIES
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

awareness programs that were conducted, 

targeting users and opinion leaders of the 

Medical Engineering

products from leading suppliers including 

expectations.

DIVERSIFIED ACTIVITIES
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview Financial Environment

insight into the interest rates, exchange 

Vehicles (No. of Units)  2007

Buses  2,637

22,603

18,408

(Source: Central Bank - Annual Report 2007)



quality
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Segment Performance

Construction & Material Handling 

segment whilst the results of Medical 

extent. Construction and Mining 

the Construction & Material Handling 

Trends

not continue due to the reasons discussed 

earlier on. Borrowings did not increase 

which augurs well for the sustained efforts 

2007/08
Rs. mn Rs. mn Rs. mn Rs. mn Rs. mn

Performance

12,687

2,375

205

Financial Position

5,831

4,368

Borrowings 2,785

Turnover

MANAGEMENT REPORT

FINANCIAL REVIEW



DIESEL & MOTOR ENGINEERING PLC Annual Report 2007/0841

MANAGEMENT REPORT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Profitability

2007/08

01

00

19 16

Construction & Material 

 (16)

05 10

Distribution and Administrative 
Expenses

Finance Expenses 

Taxation

Earnings 

Return on Equity (ROE)

reasons for which were explained earlier in 

Dividends
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Market Value Added (MVA)

2007/08

1,073,875

1,657,151

583,276)

Property, Plant & Equipment

Working Capital

Borrowings

Borrowings consist of term loans, import 

Cash Flow

generated from operations were the main 
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

facilities to support its operations. Cash 

Solvency

2008
Rs. mn Rs. mn

1,389

4,186

Total Assets 5,575

3,355

705

Total Liabilities 4,060

182

1,333

Financial Priorities

Treasury Management

function, which controls decisions in 

respect of cash management, utilisation 

Financial Market Risk

rate contracts are entered into for imports 

Retirement Benefits
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Contractual Obligations

Outlook

remain an important element of the 

Amount
due due

2008
Rs. mn Rs. mn

Long-term Borrowing 730

1,855

     one month to six months

200

Letter of Credit 1,135

211

109

Foreign Currency Transactions

also denominated in the same currencies. 

increase of Rs. 150 mn in retained earnings 

represent the increase.

Accounting and Financial 
Reporting

disclosures of material information in 

presentation of information, within the 

with shareholders and other users of 

performance of the Group.



DIESEL & MOTOR ENGINEERING PLC Annual Report 2007/0845

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE CHANGE

performance towards the goal of 

[Source: Sustainability Reporting Guidelines - Global 
Reporting Initiative (GRI)]

that follows will facilitates this process.

DIMO QUALITY & 
ENVIRONMENT POLICY

Reducing waste

Principals

Meeting Multiple Expectations through Sustainable Entrepreneurship 

efforts at meeting the aspirations and expectations of our 

express or implied. 

A.R. Pandithage

Chairman

9th May 2008
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE CHANGE

SUSTAINABILITY AT DIMO

the world. 

We are also conscious that our operations, 

role in generating a larger social wealth 

While the other sections of this annual 

of corporate reporting, in this section 

we report in some detail on the less 

Reporting in detail on the processes within 

concepts, a discourse and a language to 

ORGANISATIONAL PROFILE
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE CHANGE

Stakeholder Dialogue 

dialogue. Participation at Dimo has meant 

customer expectations and shareholder 

COMMITMENTS, GOVERNANCE & 
ENGAGEMENTS
Creating Value for all Our 
Stakeholders

groups. 

The Chain of Command

implementation across the organisation.
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE CHANGE

Stakeholders

Customers

Principal source of 

sustenance

Business Partners

chain

Sustainability Issues & Concerns

personal life

Process of Engagement

Annual General Meeting

discussions with the management 

Quarterly and half yearly reports

Employee council meetings

Employee portal

Annual Employee Surveys

Intranet

newsletter

Customer Relationship Management

customer faces is also done through the CRM process. 

Customer Satisfaction Index

high speed 24 x 7 on line

On site visits

Dialog with Religious Dignitaries

Written & oral communications

website

The Stakeholder Dialogue Process in Summary
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Shareholders

for shareholders to discuss performance, 

for regular consultations with shareholders.

Employees

are among the matters discussed at 

these meetings. Minutes are posted on 

meetings. 

means of communication with each and 

portal which carries his or her personal 

and other information. Logging on to the 

organisation.

the results are discussed at the regular 

Resource Department follows up on the 

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE CHANGE

Our Monthly newsletters to keep our employees informed
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lunch for all attendees.

assessed.

Principals

issues, targets, training, resource 

utilisation, and other processes are 

in their home countries for a similar 

our principals and explore how we could 

further strengthen the existing win-win 

Reports from principals are shared with 

are located in different parts of the world. 

Customers

relationships with customers is an 

process of engagement with customers is 

with its customers.

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE CHANGE
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maintains a constant interaction with our 

customers and solicits opinions and new 

also done through the CRM process. 

solution to the customer.

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE CHANGE

Total Number of Complaints Recorded at CRM

2007/08 24 32 24 41 43 25 24 13 14 24 24 17 305

Analysis of time taken to provide  solutions during year 2007/08
Solutions Provided

   2007/08
Tota

23

37

27 25

39

38

32

30

13

11

19

25

March 11 0 6 17

 149 46 116 311* 458

Pending at Year End   

17 3 43 70 29 162 222

All complaints were provided with a satisfactory solution eventually.
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE CHANGE
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ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

CREATING SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC SYSTEMS

Management Approach

enhance the economic conditions of all 

of entrepreneurship percolate to all social 

segments and to all geographical areas. 

Economic Performance

information.

Statement of Value Added

Value Created

Consolidated   Consolidated   Company
2007/08 2007/08

12,687,289 12,169,146

37,900 35,804

(9,444,389) (9,080,891)

3,280,800 3,124,059

Value Shared with
Consolidated   Consolidated   Company

2007/08 2007/08

18 573,208 16 512,136

58 1,906,343 60 1,882,218

Lenders 16 517,823 15  463,926

1 48,400 2 48,400

7 235,026 7 217,379

Depreciation set aside 2 84,383 2 77,160

5 150,643 5 140,219

100 3,280,800 100 3,124,059
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Shareholders

medium to long-term.

compared to Rs. 1,506 mn as the end of the 

ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

CREATING SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC SYSTEMS

Economic Value Added (EVA) 

2007/08

Total Capital Supplied

1,657,151

730,702

2,387,853

Earnings

205,093

67,915

273,008

16.54%

Economic charge 394,951

(121,943)

2007/08

17.81%

0.17

2%

2,550.5

17.95%

35%

18.15%

11.67%



DIESEL & MOTOR ENGINEERING PLC Annual Report 2007/0855

Employees

Customers

commencement of a relationship with the 

Suppliers

principals and other suppliers.

ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

CREATING SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC SYSTEMS

Total Shareholders Return (TSR)
2008

88.75

4.00

(22.70)

16.95

with our principals and to foster stronger 

relationships with principals who share our 

customers a world class product.

transferred to our principals is shown in the 

Government

main reason for this decrease in taxes paid 
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

REJUVENATING THE ENVIRONMENT

Management Approach

adapted its practices and processes so as to 

to measure the impact its operations 

processes and technologies within the 

fuel management, Water management, 

management and Paper management. 

uncompromising standards of quality and safety
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Managing Energy Use 

Computers in all locations are programmed 

and are set at a constant minimum of 

Managing Water 

reduce the use of water and to treat 

this resource. 

conforms to legal limits. 

ensures that the water is not contaminated 

with oil residue when it is released into the 

Noise Emissions 

Emissions to Air 

emissions in all aspects of its operations. 

2

a machine, which is carried upward to 

with the emission regulations under the 

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

REJUVENATING THE ENVIRONMENT
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

REJUVENATING THE ENVIRONMENT

the former to deal with harmful gas 

release of paint fumes and particles into the 

Waste Management

Dimo has introduced numerous procedures 

to segregate its waste into plastics, solid 

waste, paper, glass and other materials. 

as animal feed.

turn resends the used toner cartridges to 

the manufacturer. 

in dining areas to segregate food from 

wrapping materials.

it as raw material.

posters, vehicles and much more
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Handling of Chemicals

documented rules and guidelines in place 

to respond to the impact of such a spillage. 

off to the furnaces of authorised parties.

Paper Management

the amount of paper used within the 

documents 

paper 

selling products to customers at our 

sales outlets

segregate paper from plastics

Ensuring a clean environment - the water treatment plant at 

our Siyambalape facility

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

REJUVENATING THE ENVIRONMENT



dependability
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SOCIAL PERFORMANCE
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

EMPOWERING PEOPLE

Management Approach

our people and processes is one of the 

people within the organisation and for 

outside the organisation. 

Building a Dynamic Workforce 
through Good Practices

were no reported cases of discrimination 

or unfair dismissal and no court cases 

line managers during the time of the 

Service Group Analysis (No. of years in Service vs No. of Employees)

(Source: Human Resources Department Records)
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recognition and treated as a milestone for 

Child Labour

Health and Safety 

the programmes to put in place to address 

auditors.

SOCIAL PERFORMANCE
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

EMPOWERING PEOPLE

Ensuring employees safety - a safety audit in progressEmployees participating in the First Aid programme 
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educated on how to act in the case of an 

mechanisms.

Employee Welfare                                                       

weddings

Medical expenses 

of charge

Training

of participating in training programmes, 

SOCIAL PERFORMANCE
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

EMPOWERING PEOPLE

The Chairman and the participants at the annual strategy presentation The annual pirith ceremony held for employees and families
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Programmes Programmes

Promoting and Protecting 
Human Rights

Dimo is committed to all those rights 

on human rights and those rights 

within the organisation and all those other 

attempts at all times to ensure that our 

partners also respect human rights as part 

Ensuring Equal Opportunity

male dominated professions.

SOCIAL PERFORMANCE
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

EMPOWERING PEOPLE

Age Group Analysis (Age vs No. of Employees)

(Source: Human Resources Department Records)

Training Programmes Analysis (2007/08)
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Empowering the Broader 
Community

Dimo Automobile Training School 

(DATS)

During the training period the trainees 

meals, uniforms and footwear at the 

so wish.

Rebuilding of Dikyaya Vidyalaya

Donations to Maw Sewana

as well.

SOCIAL PERFORMANCE
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

EMPOWERING PEOPLE

Educating our nations children - school children at the 

Dikyaya Vidyalaya which is supported by Dimo

Students in the midst of their training at our state-of-the-art 

Dimo Automobile Training School
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Career Guidance

guidance programme for students at 

programme.

Car stereo products, and demonstrated 

of the programme. 

of Moratuwa. 

5 S Practices

extended this idea to three external 

in these garages now, and has helped to 

Dimo Gimanhala

Kurunegala road. Dimo customers can use 

Gimanhala. 

Blood Donation Campaigns

Corruption

Anti-Competitive Behaviour

organisations engaging in such practices. 

SOCIAL PERFORMANCE
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

EMPOWERING PEOPLE

customers on the move
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Ensuring Customer Privacy

protected as far as it does not undermine 

Product Responsibility

with its customers and ensures that 

customers are well informed should there 

principals and suppliers also follow similar 

research on their products and 

their commitment to social and 

SOCIAL PERFORMANCE
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

EMPOWERING PEOPLE

challenges, addressing economic needs 

emission control mechanism which 

reduces the emissions coming from the 

maximum use of natural light and 

minimise light pollution.

to their reconditioned machines, 

than diesel engines.
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competitors.

among the most economic in their 

and are CFC free.

standards.

wind mills and Biomass generation.

proportions.

Product Labelling

information on the use of products and 

Marketing Communications

campaigns. 

Compliance

Dimo complies with the standards and 

SOCIAL PERFORMANCE
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

EMPOWERING PEOPLE
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ASSURANCE REPORT
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

REPORT OF FACTUAL FINDINGS
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF DIESEL AND MOTOR 
ENGINEERING PLC 

in the report from the management of 

internal documents relating to 

in the report. 

an understanding of the projects 

statements into the report.

in agreement with the report.

to conduct discussions with the 

management and found that the 

contents of the report.

stated in the report. 

these projects are in operation. 

information in the report are in 

statements.

in agreement with the information 

Had we performed additional procedures or 

SJMS Associates
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GOVERNANCE REPORTS

Rating:

6 (CG)

CG = Corporate Governance

Rating scale: 

10 (highest) - 1 (lowest)

Corporate Governance Rating

Diesel & Motor Engineering PLC

May 2007

Rating Summary
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GOVERNANCE REPORTS
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GOVERNANCE REPORTS

ENTERPRISE GOVERNANCE

Company Philosophy

Governance Policy

within its own. 

Governance Strategy

Governance Culture

of commitment across the organisation, 

Performance is not encouraged at the 

as the Group recognises the importance 
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Conformance to laws and regulations 

Governance Process

Enterprise Governance 
Framework

the Board has in place to ensure that 

expectations. 

Performance
Strategic Planning

the Board of Directors set the direction 

and these parameters are translated into 

and forecast for the ensuing period 

challenges and opportunities etc. to the 

performance indicators. 

Implementing the Strategic Plan

operational issues. 

GOVERNANCE REPORTS

ENTERPRISE GOVERNANCE
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Board of Directors and projected results 

performance targets.

promotions.

Conformance
Board of Directors

are separate from other aspects of the 

and management.

and statutes. 

appears on page 10.

Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

the principles of good corporate 

Director on the Board. 

and the Remuneration Committee. Each 

Board Responsibilities 

range of experience and competencies that 

GOVERNANCE REPORTS

ENTERPRISE GOVERNANCE
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page 102.

Board Independence

Exchange.

inclusion of items on the agenda of Board 

page 126 shows the transactions relating 

Lead Director

Lead Director to whom concerns relating 

Director presides at Board Meetings in the 

Appointment, Retirement & 

Re-Election of Directors

one third of the 

Directors

Exchange and the media. 

Following appointment to the Board, 

discretion. 

and in-house training etc. 

GOVERNANCE REPORTS

ENTERPRISE GOVERNANCE
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Effectiveness of the Board

Expertise in Finance, Engineering, Law and 

information prior to Board meetings. 

Evaluation of Board Performance

Committee and the Remuneration 

important measuring tools in performance 

Meetings and Attendance

Board meetings, Committee meetings, 

communicate with each other through 

and letters.

The Company Secretary

Chairman in all aspects pertaining to 

the functions of the Board of Directors. 

He helps in arranging Board meetings 

information to the Board for their 

with the Board.

The Board Committees

Audit Committee

of the Board and its main purpose is to 

policies.

and independence of the auditors are 

GOVERNANCE REPORTS

ENTERPRISE GOVERNANCE
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Committee meetings and the attendance 

Remuneration Committee

shareholder interests.

to the Remuneration Committee. 

Committee meetings and attendance of 

Nomination Committee

and in ensuring smooth management 

independence of Directors including actual, 

expertise and desired independence. 

GOVERNANCE REPORTS

ENTERPRISE GOVERNANCE
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expense. 

Risk Management

Internal Controls

Controls lies with the Board of Directors. 

compliance with laws and regulations. 

GOVERNANCE REPORTS

ENTERPRISE GOVERNANCE

Name Board Audit Nominations Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee

* Non-Executive Director  
** Independent Non-Executive Director 

audit plan is agreed with the internal 

internal auditors are allowed the freedom 

Financial Reporting

are prepared in accordance with 

position, performance and prospects. 
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Investor Rights and Relations

with its shareholders updating them on 

share at a poll. 

Employees

communicate with the management on a 

management including the Chairman.

Sustainability Reporting

Independent Review

Compliance with Corporate 
Governance Regulations

independence. 

GOVERNANCE REPORTS

ENTERPRISE GOVERNANCE
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GOVERNANCE REPORTS

ENTERPRISE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Compliance Table (Colombo Stock Exchange Circular No. 02/2007)

Rule No. Subject Applicable requirement Compliance Status Details
  

  area of Expertise

Committee Remuneration Committee Remuneration Committee is 

    of Remuneration Committee is a 

Committee Remuneration Committee

  for such determination

  setting out the manner of 
  Compliance of the functions



lifetime
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Overview

for management is to determine how much 

reconciles the two dimensions of Enterprise 

performance. 

Risk Appetite & Strategy

Risk Management Model

of high, medium and low in terms of the 

these two factors the impact is 

categorised as low, medium & high.

Risk Exposure

model and some of the important ones are 

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT
GOVERNANCE REPORTS

  Likelihood Impact

6. Human Resources L H

11. Fraud & Error M M

12. Customers M H

15. Credit H L
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Economic Risk

Rising interest rates was one of the issues 

and leases. 

interest rates.

Industry Risk

Market/Portfolio Risk

implications.

engineering solutions to commerce and 

Relationships with Principals

with new principals and to reduce our 

principal.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT
GOVERNANCE REPORTS
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Liquidity 

Human Resources

resources are its most important asset and 

recruitment and retention of committed 

Disaster Related Risks

Compliance with Laws & 
Regulations

Laws, regulations and accepted principles 

Loss of Data

important data arising from technological 

Information Security

that we propagate also stress the need to 

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT
GOVERNANCE REPORTS
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Frauds & Errors

fraud and irregularities and safeguard the 

Customers

Management process helps it respond 

Investment Risk

Foreign Exchange Rates

Credit Risk

are extended to customers in accordance 

Technological Obsolescence

application of existing technologies. 

Labour Relations

management to then respond to them. 

Risk Management Process 

management are part of the annual 

management options are considered in 

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT
GOVERNANCE REPORTS
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units and internal audit.

to manage, minimise or eliminate these 

change it.

discussed at the GMC meetings.

to the GMC for their consideration. 

Monthly Operational Results

Internal Audit Reports

and procedures to strengthen the internal 

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT
GOVERNANCE REPORTS
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
GOVERNANCE REPORTS

performances & independence and internal 

audit function.

Compliance with Financial 
Reporting 

losses.

Material changes arising from the audit.

Meetings of Audit Committee

Risk Management

Compliance with Laws & 
Statutory Payments

auditors on the states of compliance with 

Internal Controls 

Internal Auditors



DIESEL & MOTOR ENGINEERING PLC Annual Report 2007/0890

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
GOVERNANCE REPORTS

results of the internal audit process

function

External Auditors

the re-appointment. 

Audit Committee Performance

Conclusion

structure of the Group and of the 

Group are managed in accordance with 

Group policies and that Group assets are 

safeguarded.

R. Seevaratnam

Chairman, Audit Committee
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT
GOVERNANCE REPORTS

of the Committee comprise of three 

the Board.

purpose of recommending the

Remuneration of the Board of Directors 

discussion pertaining to his remuneration.

on page 126.  

Dr. U. Liyanage

Chairman - Remuneration Committee
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT
GOVERNANCE REPORTS

in relation to nominations, retirement, 

succession and training of the Board 

Chairman to the Committee are appointed 

on Page 11. 

need arises. 

composition of the Board.

Directors.

Management.

Directors and their performance.

Dr. H. Cabral 

Chairman - Nomination Committee
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GROUP STRUCTURE
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

GENERAL

The Directors of Diesel & Motor 

Engineering PLC, a public limited 

liability company incorporated in 

Sri Lanka in 1945 under the Companies 

Ordinance No. 51 of 1938 and re-

registered as per the Companies Act 

No. 7 of 2007, present their Annual 

Report of the Board of Directors and 

the Consolidated Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31st March 2008, 

which were approved at a meeting 

held on 9th May 2008. The Financial 

Statements have been prepared 

in accordance with the Sri Lanka 

Accounting Standards as required by 

Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing 

Standards Act No. 15 of 1995 & 

Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. 

GROUP ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group 

include import, sale and repair of 

passenger cars, commercial vehicles, 

material handling machinery, storage 

systems, construction machinery, 

tractors, medical equipment, 

telecommunication equipment, 

building technologies, power 

engineering equipment, power 

engines, power tools and import and 

sale of vehicle spares, components, 

accessories and lighting products. 

a. the nature of the business of the 

Company or its subsidiaries

b. the classes of business in the 

Associate Companies 

during the year, that may have a 

Company’s affairs.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Section 168(b) of the Companies Act 

require that the Annual Report of the 

Directors include Financial Statements 

of the Company and the Group in 

accordance with Section 151 and 152 

of the Companies Act.

The requisite Financial Statements of the 

Company and the Group are given on 

pages 104 to 126 of the Annual Report. 

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Auditors’ Report on the Financial 

Statements is given on page 103 of 

the Annual Report.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

adopted in the preparation of 

Financial Statements are given on 

pages 108 to 112 of the Annual 

Report. There were no changes in 

Accounting Policies during the year.

DIRECTORATE

List of Directors

Followings were the Directors of the 

experience are given in the Board of 

Directors section on page 11 of the 

Annual Report.

A.R. Pandithage 

(Chairman/Managing Director/

A.G. Pandithage 

A.N. Algama 

S.C. Algama 

Dr. H. Cabral (Independent

R.A. Ebell 

B.C.S.A.P. Gooneratne 

Dr. U. Liyanage (Independent

A.M. Pandithage 

T.G.H. Peries 

R. Seevaratnam (Independent

R.C. Weerawardane 

Resignations, New Appointments and 
Re-elections to the Board

There were no resignations or 

new appointments made to the 

year.

Mr. A.G. Pandithage, 

Mr. A.N. Algama, Mr. T.G.H. Peries 

& Mr. R.C. Weerawardane retire by 

rotation in accordance with the 

Articles and being eligible offer 

themselves for re-election at the 

Annual General Meeting.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Statement of Directors’ 

Responsibilities for the Financial 

Statements is given on page 102.

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS

The Directors and their spouses held 

3,383,477(2006/07 - 3,399,497) 

ordinary shares of the Company,

which amounts to 27.96% (2006/07 - 

28.10%) of the ordinary shares issued 

as at 31st March 2008.
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

INTEREST REGISTER

The Interest Register is maintained 

by the Company as required by the 

Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. The 

related entries were made in the 

year under review. 

The entries made in the interest 

register  during the year are as 

follows:

Directors’ Interest in   
Contracts

All Directors’ have made 

declarations on their interest 

in transactions or proposed 

transactions with the Company in 

accordance with Section 192 (2) 

of the Companies Act. 

The Directors’ interest in 

contracts are disclosed in the 

annexure on page 101. 

Acquisition/Disposal of Shares 
by Directors

Mr. A.N. Algama and 

Mr.T.G.H. Peries disposed of 

16,700 and 6,754 shares of the 

Company  respectively  during 

the year.

There were no other acquisition 

or disposal of shares by any 

other Director during the period.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration in respect of 

the Group and the Company for the 

are given on Note 28 to the Financial 

Statements on page 126 of the Annual 

Report.

ENTERPRISE GOVERNANCE

The report on Enterprise Governance 

is given on pages 71 to 81 of the 

Annual Report. With a view to 

obtaining an independent opinion 

on Corporate Governance initiatives, 

Messrs DET NORSKE VERITAS AS 

(DNV) was engaged to review the 

Company’s Corporate Governance 

framework and issue a Corporate 

Governance rating along with a review 

report containing shortcomings and 

suggestions. A summary of the rating 

report is available on pages 71 & 72 of 

the Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Group Management Committee 

including the Executive Directors have 

taken necessary steps to overlook the 

implementation of an affective system 

as well as operational activities of 

the Company. The Directors have 

outsourced a part of the internal audit 

function to review and report on the 

effectiveness of the internal controls.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors of the 

Company has formed the following 

Sub-Committees and the Reports of 

such Sub Committees are given on 

page 11 of the Annual Report.

Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

Nomination Committee

AUDITORS

The Auditors - Messrs KPMG Ford, 

Rhodes, Thornton & Co., Chartered 

Accountants  were paid Rs. 1.325 mn 

for the year ended 31st March  2008 

(Rs. 0.95 mn in 2007) as audit fees by 

the Company. In addition to that, they 

were paid Rs. 0.766 mn. (Rs. 0.146 mn. 

in 2007) for non-audit related services 

including tax consultancy services.

Based on the declaration made by 

Messrs KPMG Ford, Rhodes, Thornton 

& Co., Chartered Accountants and 

as far as the Directors are aware, the 

auditors do not have any relationship 

or interest in the Company or its 

subsidiary other than disclosed in this 

paragraph.

The retiring Auditors, Messrs KPMG 

Ford, Rhodes, Thornton & Co., 

Chartered Accountants are willing to 

on reappointing them as Auditors and 

granting authority to the Directors 

to decide their remuneration will 

be proposed at the Annual General 

Meeting.

The shareholdings of Directors and their spouses as at 31st March 2008 

are as follows:
2007/08 2006/07

A.R. Pandithage 1,882,095 1,874,661

A.N. Algama 170,755 187,455

A.M. Pandithage 219,778 219,778

A.G. Pandithage 383,545 383,545

S.C. Algama 399,134 399,134

T.G.H. Peries 328,170 334,924
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of operations, developments 

and outlook is available in the 

Chairman’s & CEO’s Review on 

pages 6 to 9 Financial Review on 

pages 37 to 44 and Business 

Performance Review on 

pages 16 to 36.

Segment turnover and other 

segment information are available 

on pages 16 to 36. 

RISK MANAGEMENT

A systematic ongoing process is 

adopted to identify and manage 

different types of risks which the 

Company faces. This Company’s 

strategy on Risk Management is 

detailed in the Risk Management 

section on pages 84 to 88 of the 

Annual Report. 

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group promotes to its employees 

the need for the highest standards 

of integrity and ethics in business 

dealings, including compliance with 

all relevant legislation and codes of 

practice. Employees are regarded 

as the key to being able to translate 

policies and strategies into commercial 

success.

The Group is committed to providing 

a working environment in which this 

process can succeed.

Adequate measures are taken to 

ensure that all employees have the 

opportunity to understand and

appreciate the Group’s objectives and 

policies. The employment policy of 

the Group embodies the principal of 

equal opportunity. The Group aims to 

create an opportunity for participation 

and involvement, encourage the 

skills, promote the use of initiative and

stimulate personal advancement. 

Reward systems recognise success at 

both the corporate and individual level. 

The number of persons employed by 

the Company and its subsidiaries at 

the year end was 867 (2006/07 - 862).

HEALTH & SAFETY

The Group safeguards occupational 

health and hygiene of its employees by 

providing a safe working environment 

and complying with all relevant 

statutory obligations. The Group also 

has an employees’ medical scheme 

and expenditure in relation to this for 

the year was Rs. 10,806,907/-.

ENVIRONMENT

The Group is sensitive to the needs 

of the environment, not only in terms 

of compliance with relevant statutory 

obligations, but more generally in terms 

of energy and water and in reducing 

and handling of waste material. It 

is the Group’s policy to minimise 

adverse effects on the environment 

and to promote corporation and 

compliance with relevant authorities 

and regulations. The business activities 

of the Group can have an indirect 

impact on the environment if necessary 

preventive measures are not taken. The 

steps taken to prevent possible indirect 

impact are outlined in the Sustainability 

Report on pages 45 to 70.

QUALITY

The Group is committed to maintain 

its long established reputation of being 

a symbol of quality. All employees are 

encouraged to regard the continuous 

improvement of quality standards as a 

key to competitive advantage.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Dividends on Ordinary Shares

dividend of Rs. 2.50 per share 

(2006/07 - Rs. 3/- per share) payable 

on 27th June 2008 to the shareholders 

of the issued ordinary shares of the 

Company as at close of the business 

on 21st June 2008. This dividend 

together with the interim dividend of 

Rs. 1.50 per share (2006/07 - Rs. 3/- 

per share) results in a total dividend of 

Rs. 4/- per share (2006/07 - Rs. 6/- per 

share). In accordance with Section 

56 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 

2007, a solvency test was carried out 

by the Company’s Auditors, prior to 

Income Tax Expense & Deferred 
Taxation

It is the Group’s policy to provide 

for deferred taxation on all known 

temporary differences. The income tax 

rate applicable to all companies in the 

is 15%.

STATUTORY PAYMENTS

respect of statutory liabilities including 

EPF, ETF and Taxes have been made 

DONATIONS

The Donations made during the year 

amounted to Rs. 628,265/- (2006/07 - 

Rs. 674,129/-). A sum of Rs. 35,000/- 

(2006/07 - Rs. 145,000/-) made to 

government approved charities.

PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Group expenditure on property, 

plant & equipment during the year 

amounted to Rs. 554,483,332/-

(2006/07 - Rs. 305,542,358/-). 

Information relating to movement in 

property, plant & equipment is given in 

Note 9 to the Financial Statements.

MARKET VALUE OF FREEHOLD LAND

revalued the freehold land of the 

Company on 20th August 2004.

GROUP INVESTMENT

Information relating to investments 

other than in subsidiaries is available 

in Notes 12, 13 & 14 to the Financial 

Statements.

STATED CAPITAL

The Stated Capital of the Company as 

at March 31, 2008 was Rs. 182.5 mn 

(2007 - Rs. 182.5 mn) consisting of 

12,100,000 Ordinary Shares and Share 

Premium amounting to Rs. 61.5 mn.

RESERVES

The total reserves as at 31st March 

2008 stand at Rs. 1,474,649,854/- 

(2006/07 - Rs. 1,324,007,149/-) 

comprising capital reserves of 

Rs. 311,521,385/- (2006/07 - 

Rs. 311,521,385/-) and revenue 

reserves of Rs. 1,163,128,469/-

(2006/07 - Rs. 1,012,485,765/-). 

The Statement of Changes in Equity on 

page 106 gives the movement in equity 

during the year.

SHARE INFORMATION

Information relating to shareholding, 

earnings, and net assets per share, 

market value of shares, dividends 

and share trading are available on 

pages 128 to 131.

SHAREHOLDINGS

There were 1,224 registered 

shareholders as at 31st March 2008. 

The percentage of shares held by the

Public as at 31st March 2008 was 

44% of the issued shares. The twenty 

major shareholders as at

31st March 2008 and the number 

of shares held and their percentage 

shareholding are given on page 130.

OPERATIONAL RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS OF THE GROUP

   2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Turnover
Gross Turnover 12,687,289 12,989,916

After making provision for bad and 
   doubtful debts and all known liabilities and 
   after charging a sum of Rs. 84,244,159/- 
   (2006/07 - Rs. 63,037,571/-) for
   Depreciation of property, plant & equipment 

344,444 512,818
Income tax expense (139,351) (211,041)

205,093 301,777

Appropriations
Interim dividend paid (18,150) (36,300)

333,278 104,101
Available for appropriation 520,221 369,578

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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SHAREHOLDER

The Company has made all 

endeavours to ensure equitable 

treatment to all shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS & 

REGULATIONS

To the best of the knowledge and 

belief of the Directors, the Company 

has not engaged in any activities 

contravening the laws & regulations of 

the country.

OUTSTANDING LITIGATION

In the opinion of the Directors and 

in consultation with the Company 

Lawyers, litigation currently pending 

against the Company will not have 

a material impact on the reported 

the Company.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER 
BALANCE SHEET DATE

There have not been any material 

events that occurred subsequent to 

the date of the Balance Sheet which 

require adjustments to or disclosure in 

the Financial Statements.

CONTINGENCIES & COMMITMENTS

Contingent Liabilities and Capital 

Commitments made as at 31st March 

2008 is given in Note 27 to the

Financial Statements.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors are of the opinion that 

the Company has adequate resources 

to continue in operational existence for 

the foreseeable future. The Financial 

Statements have been prepared 

adopting the going concern basis as 

stated in the Statement of Directors’ 

Responsibilities.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting will be 

Company, No. 65, Jetawana Road, 

Colombo 14 on 20th June 2008. The 

Notice of Annual General Meeting is 

given on page 144.

By order of the Board of Directors

A.R. Pandithage

Chairman    

R.C. Weerawardane

Director

   

B.C.S.A.P. Gooneratne

Secretary

Colombo

09th May 2008

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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DIRECTORS INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company are also Directors of the following companies:

Company Name Relationship Name of the Director

Dimo (Pvt) Ltd. Subsidiary Mr. A.R. Pandithge
Mr. S.C. Algama
Mr. A.G. Pandithage
Mr. B.C.S.A.P. Gooneratne
Mr. R.C. Weerawardena

Dimo Industries (Pvt) Ltd. Subsidiary Mr. A.R. Pandithage
Mr. A.G. Pandithge
Mr. S.C. Algama
Mr. B.C.S.A.P. Gooneratne
Mr. R.C. Weerawardena

Dimo Travels (Pvt) Ltd. Subsidiary Mr. A.R. Pandithage
Mr. S.C. Algama

Dimo-KLN Industries (Pvt) Ltd. Joint Venture Mr. A.R. Pandithage
Mr. R.C. Weerawardena

Browns Dimo Industrial Products (Pvt) Ltd. Associate Mr. A.R. Pandithage
Mr. R.C. Weerawardena

The inter company balances and transactions are given on Note 28 on page 126.

The Company has entered into contracts in the normal course of business with the following companies in which a Director of the 

Company is also director of the said Company,    

Company Name Name of the Director Nature Of Transaction Transaction Amount 

Air Global Ltd. Mr. A.M. Pandithage Air Passage 3,162,808

Global Holidays (Pvt) Ltd. Mr. A.M. Pandithage Air Passage 3,918,442

Hayleys Consumer Products (Pvt) Ltd. Mr. A.M. Pandithage Purchases of Electronic Items 47,150

Mr. R.A. Ebell

Logiwiz Ltd. Mr. A.M. Pandithage Services of Storage & Delivery 10,000

Mit Cargo (Pvt) Ltd. Mr. A.M. Pandithage 

Mr. R.A. Ebell Services of Shipping & Warehouse 725,833

Toyo Cushion Lanka (Pvt) Ltd Mr. A.M. Pandithage Services of Forklifts 481,727

Hayleys PLC Mr. A.M. Pandithage Annual Maintenance Contract 48,000

Mr. R.A. Ebell

Hayleys Adventis (Pvt) Ltd Mr. A.M. Pandithage Vehicle Servicing & Sale of Tyres. 477,970

Mr. R.A. Ebell

Hayleys Industrial Solutions Ltd. Mr. A.M. Pandithage Sales of Power Tool & 

Mr. R.A. Ebell telephone System & Services Telephones 427,597

Hayleys-MGT Knitting Mills Ltd. Mr. R.A. Ebell Sales of Ups Battries & Tyres 273,678

Hayleys Agro Products Ltd. Mr. A.M. Pandithage Sales of Spare Parts 203,369

Mr. R.A. Ebell

Q & E Advertising (Pvt) Ltd. Dr. U. Liyanage Sale of Lighting & Annual Maintanance PABX 63,799

Q & E Advertising (Pvt) Ltd. Dr. U. Liyanage Press /media Advertisements & Art Work 11,405,450

Ceylon Cold Stores PLC Dr. U. Liyanage Sales of Spare Parts 140,949

Dipped Product PLC Mr. A.M. Pandithage Sales of Tyres 54,076

Mr. R.A. Ebell 

Mr. R. Seevaratnam

Hayleys AIG Insurance Co. Ltd. Mr. A.M. Pandthiage Insurance Premiums 13,015,347

ANNEXURE TO THE ANNUAL REPORT OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 

required the Directors to prepare 

and present Financial Statements for 

fair view of the state of affairs of the 

Company and the Group as at the end 

loss of the Company and the Group for 

The responsibilities of the Directors 

in relation to the Financial Statements 

of the Company and the Group are set 

out in following statement. 

The responsibility of the Auditors in 

relation to the Financial Statements 

appears in the report of the Auditors 

on page 103.

As per the provision of the Companies 

Act No. 7 of 2007 the Directors are 

year and place before a general 

meeting of shareholders the Financial 

Statements, which comprise:

I. A Statement of Income, which 

presents a true and fair view of 

II. A Balance Sheet, which presents 

a true and fair view of the state 

of affairs of the Company and its 

subsidiary as at the end of the 

with the requirements of the 

Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 

and Sri Lanka Accounting and 

Auditing Standards Act No.15 

of 1995.

In addition, the Directors have to 

ensure that in preparing the Financial 

Statements:

a) appropriate Accounting Policies 

have been used in consistent 

b) where necessary prudent 

judgement and estimate have 

been made.

The Directors are responsible for 

ensuring that the companies within 

records to disclose with reasonable 

Company and the Group as required by 

the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 and 

the listing rules of the Colombo Stock 

Exchange.

The Directors are required to provide 

the Auditors with every opportunity 

to take what ever steps necessary 

and undertake any inspection deemed 

necessary to enable them to form their 

audit opinion. 

Messrs KPMG Ford, Rhodes, Thornton 

& Company the auditors of the 

Company have examined the Financial 

Statements and the related records and 

information. Their opinion on Financial 

Statements are given on page 103.

The Directors are also responsible 

for taking reasonable measures to 

safeguard the assets of the Group, and 

in that context to have proper regard 

to the establishment of appropriate 

systems of internal control with a view 

to prevention and detection of fraud 

and other irregularities.

The Directors, having reviewed the 

the year to 31st March 2009 and the 

bank facilities, consider that the Group 

has adequate resources to continue 

in operation, and have continued to 

adopt the going concern basis in 

preparing Financial Statements. 

By Order of the Board,

B.C.S.A.P. Gooneratne 

Secretary

Colombo

9th May 2008
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DIESEL 
& MOTOR ENGINEERING PLC

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying 

Engineering PLC the consolidated 

and its subsidiaries as at that date 

which comprise the balance sheet as 

at March 31, 2008, and the income 

statement, statement of changes in 

the year then ended, and a summary 

other explanatory notes as set out on 

pages 104 to 126 of the Annual Report.

Management’s Responsibility for the 
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the 

preparation and fair presentation 

accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standards. This responsibility 

includes: designing, implementing and 

maintaining internal control relevant to 

the preparation and fair presentation of 

material misstatement, whether due to 

making accounting estimates that are 

reasonable in the circumstances.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion

Our responsibility is to express an 

based on our audit. We conducted our 

audit in accordance with Sri Lanka 

Auditing Standards. Those standards 

require that we plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

free from material misstatement. 

An audit includes examining, on 

a test basis, evidence supporting 

the amounts and disclosures in the 

includes assessing the accounting 

estimates made by management, as 

statement presentation.

We have obtained all the information 

and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purposes of our 

audit. We therefore believe that our 

audit provides a reasonable basis for 

our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, so far as appears 

from our examination, the Company 

maintained proper accounting records 

for the year ended March 31, 2008 and 

and fair view of the Company’s state 

of affairs as at March 31, 2008 and its 

ended in accordance with Sri Lanka 

Accounting Standards.

In our opinion, the consolidated 

fair view of the state of affairs as at 

accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standards, of the Company and its 

subsidiaries dealt with thereby, so 

far as concerns the members of the 

Company.

Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements

comply with the requirements of 

Sections 153(2) to 153(7) of the 

Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. 

Chartered Accountants

Colombo

9th May 2008
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INCOME STATEMENTS

Consolidated Company
For the year ended 31st March 2008 2007  2008 2007
   Note Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Gross turnover 1 12,687,289 12,989,916 12,169,146 12,449,644

Turnover tax (129,439) (131,578) (125,722) (127,565)

Net turnover 12,557,850 12,858,338 12,043,424 12,322,079

Cost of sales (10,181,909) (10,728,925) (9,874,218) (10,365,846)

2,375,941 2,129,413 2,169,206 1,956,233

Other income 2 37,900 28,065 35,804 29,152

Distribution expenses (326,815) (226,057) (314,350) (219,147)

Administrative expenses (1,227,721) (959,084) (1,092,783) (857,736)

(518,143) (462,177) (469,899) (432,868)

   Net of  tax 4 3,282 2,658 – –  

5 344,444 512,818 327,978 475,634

Income tax expense 6 (139,351) (211,041) (133,309) (193,606)

205,093 301,777 194,669 282,028

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 205,093 301,777

Minority interest –  –  

205,093 301,777

Basic earning per share - (Rs.) 7 16.95 25.76 16.09 24.07

Diluted earning per share - (Rs.) 7 16.95 25.76 16.09 24.07

Dividend per share - (Rs.) 8 4.00 6.00 4.00 6.00

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

an integral part of these Financial Statements.

The Report of the Auditors is on page 103.
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BALANCE SHEETS

Consolidated Company
As at 31st March 2008 2007  2008 2007
   Note Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

ASSETS
Non-Current assets
Property, plant & equipment 9 1,392,110 939,890 1,329,751 892,164
Leasehold property 10 1,520 1,600 1,520 1,600  
Intangible assets 11 2,749 –  2,749 –
Investment in subsidiaries 12 –  – 350 350
Investment in joint venture 13 – –  6,000 6,000
Investment in equity accounted investee 14 25,011 21,729 6,750 6,750
Other long-term investments 15 41,678 41,678 41,671 41,671
Deferred tax assets 21 – 473 – –  
Total non-current assets 1,463,068 1,005,370 1,388,791 948,535

Current assets
Inventories  16 2,189,806 2,097,128 2,123,448 2,005,682
Trade & other receivables 17 2,117,315 1,919,744 1,899,155 1,641,823
Income tax recoverable 25 9,747 –  – –  
Receivables from subsidiaries & joint ventures 28 – –  113,876 168,204
Cash & cash equivalents 18 51,222 176,390 49,454 175,521
Total current assets 4,368,090 4,193,262 4,185,933 3,991,230
TOTAL ASSETS 5,831,158 5,198,632 5,574,724 4,939,765

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Stated capital 19 182,500 182,500 182,500 182,500
Revaluation reserves 19 311,522 311,522 311,522 311,522
Revenue reserves 19 1,163,129 1,012,486 1,021,007 880,788
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 1,657,151 1,506,508 1,515,029 1,374,810

Non-current liabilities
Long-term interest bearing loans and borrowings 20 554,176 345,546 554,176 345,546
Deferred tax liabilities 21 41,132 31,327 40,990 31,327
Deferred income 22 1,222 3,218 1,222 3,218

115,763 93,753 108,130 86,703
Total non-current liabilities 712,293 473,844 704,518 466,794

Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term interest-bearing 
   loans and borrowings 20 193,539 158,532 193,539 158,532
Trade & other payables 24 1,163,544 586,137 1,108,779 552,285
Amounts payable to subsidiaries 28 – –  392 467
Income tax payable 25 49,972 113,001 49,972 111,144
Short-term interest-bearing loans and borrowings 26 2,054,659 2,360,610 2,002,495 2,275,733
Total current liabilities 3,461,714 3,218,280 3,355,177 3,098,161
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,831,158 5,198,632 5,574,724 4,939,765

I certify that the Financial Statements as set out on pages 104 to 126 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

E.D.C. Kodituwakku
General Manager, Finance & Controlling/Member - Group Management Committee

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements.

Signed for and on behalf of the Board,

A.R. Pandithage B.C.S.A.P. Gooneratne

9th May, 2008
Figures in brackets indicate deductions

integral part of these Financial Statements.
The Report of the Auditors is on Page 103.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Stated Capital
   Voting Share Revaluation General Retained Total
   Shares Premium Reserve Reserve Earnings
Consolidated  Note Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000

2006/07

Balance as at 1st April 2006 100,000 27,500 311,522 472,908 304,101 1,216,031

Transfer to/(from) general reserve –  –  –  170,000 (170,000) –  

Dividend to shareholders

- 2006/07 - interim 8 –  –  –  –  (33,300) (33,300

Bonus issue  10,000 (10,000) –  –  –  –

Rights issue  11,000 44,000 –  –  –  55,000

Balance as at 31st March 2007 121,000 61,500 311,522 642,908 369,578 1,506,508

2007/08

Transfer to/(from) general reserve –  –  –  –  –  –  

Dividend to shareholders

- 2007/08 - interim 8 –  –  –  –  (18,150) (18,150)

Balance as at 31st March 2008 121,000 61,500 311,522 642,908 520,221 1,657,151

Stated Capital
   Voting Share Revaluation General Retained Total
   Shares Premium Reserve Reserve Earnings
Company Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

2006/07

Balance as at 1st April 2006 100,000 27,500 311,522 423,082 241,978 1,104,082

Transfer to/(from) general reserve –  –  –  150,000 (150,000) –  

Dividend to shareholders

- 2006/07 - interim 8 –  –  –  –  (33,300) (33,300)

Bonus issue  10,000 (10,000) –  –  –  –  

Rights issue  11,000 44,000 –  –  –  55,000

Balance as at 31st March 2007 121,000 61,500 311,522 573,082 307,706 1,374,810

2007/08

Transfer to/(from) general reserve –  –  –  –  –  –  

Dividend to shareholders

- 2007/08 - interim 8 –  –  –  –  (18,150) (18,150)

 Balance as at 31st March 2008 121,000 61,500 311,522 573,082 447,925 1,515,029

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

Financial Statements.

The Report of the Auditors is on page 103.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

Consolidated Company
For the year ended 31st March 2008 2007  2008 2007
   Note Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000

Operating Activities

Cash receipts from customers 12,385,498 13,175,265 11,863,519 12,665,483

Cash paid to suppliers and employees (11,145,323) (12,176,773) (10,744,103) (11,717,838)

Cash generated from operations 1,240,175 998,492 1,119,416 947,645

Interest paid (517,620) (460,172) (469,093) (430,783)

Income taxes paid (201,849) (155,186) (184,818) (137,969)

520,706 383,134 465,505 378,893

Investing Activities

Proceeds from disposal of 

   property, plant & equipment 25,424 15,358 24,511 21,314

Investment in joint venture – –  – (6,000)

Dividends received 1,913 1,934 1,913 1,934

Interest received 637 383 354 303

Acquisition and construction of 

   property, plant & equipment (547,186) (305,311) (524,401) (263,441)

(519,212) (287,636) (497,623) (245,890)

Financing Activities

Proceeds from rights issue – 55,000 – 55,000

Proceeds from long-term loans 400,000 117,670 400,000 117,670

Repayment of long-term loans (146,863) (135,905) (146,863) (135,905)

Dividends paid (54,450) (66,363) (54,450) (66,363)

(19,398) (19,860) (19,398) (19,860)

179,289 (49,458) 179,289 (49,458)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents  180,783 46,040 147,171 83,545

Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of the year  (2,184,220) (2,230,260) (2,100,212) (2,183,757)

Cash & cash equivalents at end of the year (Note A)  (2,003,437) (2,184,220) (1,953,041) (2,100,212)

A. Analysis of Cash & Cash Equivalents

Bank and cash balances (Note 18) 51,222 176,390 49,454 175,521

Bank borrowings (Note 26) (2,054,659) (2,360,610) (2,002,495) (2,275,733)

Cash & cash equivalents (2,003,437) (2,184,220) (1,953,041) (2,100,212)

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

Financial Statements.

The Report of the Auditors is on page 103.
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1. REPORTING ENTITY

Diesel & Motor Engineering PLC 

and its Subsidiaries are limited 

liability companies, incorporated and 

domiciled in Sri Lanka. The parent 

company and its subsidiaries have the 

business located at No. 65, Jetawana 

Road, Colombo 14.

The consolidated Financial Statements of 

Diesel & Motor Engineering PLC. as at 

and for the year ended 31st March 2008 

comprise the Company and its fully-

owned subsidiaries (together referred to 

as the ‘Group’) and the Group’s interest 

in an associate and jointly controlled 

entities. The Financial Statements of all 

Companies in the Group are prepared 

on 31st March. The Directors authorised 

the Financial Statements for issue on 9th 

May 2008.

Diesel & Motor Engineering PLC does 

own.

i. Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been 

prepared in accordance with 

Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 

(SLAS) adopted by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka 

(ICASL), and the requirements of 

the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, 

and Sri Lanka Accounting & Auditing 

Standards Act No. 15 of 1995.

ii. Responsibility for 
Financial Statements 

The Board of Directors is responsible 

for the preparation & presentation 

of the Financial Statements. The 

statement containing the Directors 

Responsibility for Financial Statements 

is given on page 102.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

iii. Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been 

prepared on the historical cost basis, 

except that certain land included in 

property, plant & equipment is stated 

at a valuation as explained in Note 9 to 

the Financial Statements. 

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements are 

presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which 

is the Company’s functional currency. 

Sri Lankan Rupees has been rounded 

to the nearest thousand, unless 

otherwise stated.

Use of estimates and Judgments 

The preparation of Financial 

Statements in conformity with 

SLAS requires management to 

make judgments, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the application 

of accounting policies and the reported 

amounts of assets, liabilities, income 

and expenses. Actual results may 

differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions 

are reviewed on an on going basis. 

Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the 

estimates are revised if the revision 

affects only that period or in the period 

of the revision and future periods if 

revision affects both current and future 

periods.

Going concern

The Directors have made an 

assessment of the Group’s ability to 

continue as a going concern in the 

foreseeable future, and they do not 

intend either to liquidate or to cease 

trading.

Basis of Consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities 

controlled by the Group. Control 

exists when the Group has the power, 

directly or indirectly, to govern the 

its activities. In assessing control, 

potential voting rights that are 

currently exercisable are taken into 

account. The Financial Statements 

of subsidiaries are included in the 

consolidated Financial Statements 

from the date that control commences 

until the date that control ceases. 

There is no minority interest in the 

consolidated Financial Statements 

since all subsidiary companies are 

wholly owned.

(b) Associates (equity accounted 
investees) and jointly controlled 
entities

Associates are those entities in which 

the Group holds between 20 and 

50 percent of the voting power of 

another entity. Jointly controlled 

entities are those entities over 

whose activities the Group has joint 

control, established by contractual 

agreement and requiring unanimous 

operating decisions. Associates are 

accounted for using the equity method 

(equity accounted investees) and 

are initially recognised at cost. The 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

include the Group proportionate share 

of the joint venture assets/liabilities, 

revenue and expenses with items 

of a similar nature on a line by line 
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basis. The Consolidated Financial 

Statements include the Group’s 

share of the income and expenses 

and equity movements of equity 

accounted investees, from the date 

ceases. When the Group’s share of 

losses exceeds its interest in an equity 

accounted investee, the carrying 

amount of that interest is reduced 

to nil and the recognition of further 

losses is discontinued except to the 

extent that the Group has incurred 

obligations or has made payments on 

behalf of the investee.

(c) Transactions Eliminated on 
Consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, 

and any income and expenses 

arising from intra-group transactions 

are eliminated in preparing the 

consolidated Financial Statements. 

Unrealised gains arising from 

transactions with equity accounted 

investees are eliminated to the extent 

of the Group’s interest in the investee.

iv. Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies 

are translated into Sri Lankan Rupees 

at exchange rates at the date of the 

transaction. Monetary assets and 

liabilities denominated in foreign 

currencies at the reporting date are 

retranslated into Sri Lankan rupees 

at the exchange rate at that date. 

Foreign exchange differences arising 

and loss.

v. Segment Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable 

component of the Group that is 

engaged either in providing products 

or services (business segment), or in 

providing products or services within 

a particular economic environment 

(geographical segment), which is 

subject to risks and rewards that are 

different from those other segments.

The segment reporting is presented 

on the primary format, business 

segments, as per the Sri Lanka 

Accounting Standard No. 28 - 

Segment Reporting.

Inter-segment pricing is determined 

on an arm’s length basis.

Segment information is based on 

core’ business activities. Segment 

information includes revenue, segment 

Segment assets and liabilities include 

those operational assets and liabilities 

that can be allocated to the segment 

on a reasonable basis.

Segment expenses consist of direct 

expenses pertaining to and directly 

attributable to the segment.

Considering activities of the 

operations, segment information 

based on geographical segments does 

not arise.

2. ASSETS AND BASES OF THEIR 
VALUATION

on the Balance Sheet are cash and 

bank balances and those which are 

expected to be realised in cash during 

the normal operating cycle or within 

one year from the Balance Sheet date, 

whichever is shorter.

i. Property, Plant & Equipment

Items of property, plant & equipment 

are measured at cost (or valuation in 

the case of land) less accumulated 

depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses.

(a) Cost

The cost of property, plant & 

equipment is the cost of acquisition 

or construction together with any 

expenses incurred in bringing the 

assets to their working condition for 

their intended use.

Where parts of an item of property, 

plant & equipment have different 

useful lives, they are accounted for as 

separate items (major components) of 

property, plant & equipment.

(b) Revaluation

A revaluation of land is done when 

there is a substantial distinction 

between the fair value (market value) 

and the carrying amount of the land 

and is undertaken by professionally 

carrying amount on revaluation are 

credited to the revaluation surplus 

reserve in shareholders equity. 

Decreases that offset previous 

increases of the same individual 

asset are charged against revaluation 

and loss.

(c) Subsequent Expenditure

The cost of the day to day servicing 

of property, plant and equipment are 

(d) Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of 

property, plant and equipment is 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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expected from its use or disposal. 

Gains and losses on derecognition are 

(e) Depreciation

loss on a straight-line basis over the 

estimated useful lives of items of each 

part of an item of property, plant & 

lease are depreciated over the shorter 

of the lease term and the useful lives 

of equivalent owned assets. Freehold 

land is not depreciated. 

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Years

Buildings 36-40

Plant & Machinery 08-13

Workshop Implements 03-04

Motor Vehicles 03-04

Furniture & Fittings 09-13

Computer Hardware & Software 03-04

Depreciation of an asset begins when 

it is available for use and ceases at 

the earlier of the date that the asset is 

that the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and 

residual values are reassessed at the 

reporting date.

(f) Capital Work-in-Progress

Capital expenditure incurred during the 

year, which are not completed as at 

the Balance Sheet date are shown as 

capital work-in-progress.

ii. Intangible Assets

An Intangible Asset is recognised if it 

is probable that the future economic 

cost of the asset can be measured 

reliably in accordance with SLAS 37 on 

Intangible Assets. Accordingly these 

assets are stated in the Balance Sheet 

at cost less accumulated amortisation 

and accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure on intangible 

assets is capitalised only when it 

which it relates. 

Amortisation

and loss on a straight-line basis over 

the estimated useful lives of intangible 

assets from the date that they are 

available for use. The estimated useful 

lives for the current and comparative 

periods are as follows:

Computer software - 4 years.

iii. Investments

Long-Term Investments

Investments in quoted and unquoted 

shares held on long-term basis are 

measured at cost less impairment 

losses. In the parent company 

Financial Statements, investments 

in subsidiaries, associate and jointly 

controlled entity are carried at cost 

less impairment losses under the 

parent Company accounting policy for 

long term investments.

Provision for impairment is made 

when in the opinion of the Directors 

there has been a decline other 

than temporary in the value of the 

investment.

iv. Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower 

of cost and net realisable value. Net 

realisable value is the estimated 

selling price in the ordinary course of 

business, less the estimated costs of 

completion and selling expenses.

The cost of inventories is based on 

the weighted average cost principle 

and includes expenditure incurred in 

acquiring the inventories and bringing 

them to their existing location and 

condition.

A provision is made for all non-moving 

and obsolete items of inventory.

v. Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated 

in the accounts at their estimated 

realisable value. A provision has been 

made in respect of bad & doubtful 

debts. Debts that are known to be 

uncollectible are written off.

vi. Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents comprise 

cash balances and demand deposits. 

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on 

demand and form an integral part of 

the Group’s cash management are 

included as a component of cash & 

cash equivalents for the purpose of the 

Statement of Cash Flows.

vii. Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s 

assets, other than inventories and 

deferred tax assets, are reviewed 

at each reporting date to determine 

whether there is any indication of 

impairment. If any such indication 

exists then the asset’s recoverable 

amount is estimated. For goodwill and 

lives or that are not yet available for 

use, recoverable amount is estimated at 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES



DIESEL & MOTOR ENGINEERING PLC Annual Report 2007/08111

each reporting date or more frequently, 

if events or changes in circumstances 

indicate that it might be impaired.

The recoverable amount of an asset 

or cash-generating unit is the greater 

of its value in use and its fair value 

less costs to sell. In assessing value 

are discounted to their present value 

using a pre-tax discount rate that 

of the time value of money and 

cash-generating unit is the smallest 

from other assets and groups.

An impairment loss is recognised 

if the carrying amount of an asset 

or its cash-generating unit exceeds 

its estimated recoverable amount. 

Impairment losses are recognised 

recognised in respect of cash-

reduce the carrying amount of any 

goodwill allocated to the units and 

then to reduce the carrying amount of 

the other assets in the unit (group of 

units) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of 

goodwill is not reversed. In respect 

of other assets, impairment losses 

recognised in prior periods are 

assessed at each reporting date for 

any indications that the loss has 

decreased or no longer exists. An 

impairment loss is reversed if there 

has been a change in the estimates 

used to determine the recoverable 

amount. An impairment loss is 

reversed only to the extent that the 

asset’s carrying amount does not 

exceed the carrying amount that 

would have been determined, net of 

depreciation or amortisation, if no 

impairment loss had been recognised.

3. LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

liabilities on the Balance Sheet are 

those, which fall due for payment 

on demand or within one year from 

the Balance Sheet date. Non-current 

liabilities are those balances that fall 

due for payment after one year from 

the Balance Sheet date.

All known liabilities have been 

accounted for in preparing the 

Financial Statements.

Obligations for contributions to 

and loss when incurred.

Gratuity

Provision has been made for retiring 

for all employees in conformity 

with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 

However, under the Payment of 

Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, liability to 

an employee arises only on completion 

The liability has not been actuarially 

valued and is not externally funded.

The liability is calculated on the basis 

of half a month’s salary for each 

completed year of service.

ii. Deferred Income

The excess of sales proceeds over the 

carrying amount of an asset in a sale 

as Deferred Income. Deferred Income 

and loss over the lease period.

iii. Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are stated at 

their cost.

iv. Provisions

A provision is recognised, if as a 

result of a past event, the Group has a 

present legal or constructive obligation 

that can be estimated reliably, and it is 

obligation.

v. Warranties

A provision for warranties is 

recognised when the underlying 

products or services are sold. The 

provision is based on historical 

warranty data and a weighing of 

all possible outcomes against their 

associated probabilities.

4. INCOME & EXPENSES

For the purpose of presentation of 

the Income Statement, the function 

of expenses method is adopted, as it 

represents fairly the elements of the 

Company performance.

i. Turnover

The net Group turnover excludes 

turnover taxes and trade discounts. 

The gross turnover represents the 

invoiced value of goods & services to 

customers outside the Group.

ii. Revenue

(a) Goods Sold & Services   
Rendered

Revenue from the sale of goods is 

measured at the fair value of the 

consideration received or receivable, 

net of returns and allowances and trade 

discounts. Revenue is recognised when 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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ownership have been transferred to the 

buyer, recovery of the consideration 

is probable, the associated costs 

and possible return of goods can 

be measured reliably, there is no 

continuing managerial involvement with 

the goods and the amount of revenue 

can be measured reliably.

Revenue from services rendered is 

invoicing of the job after completion. 

In instances where the revenue from 

services spreads over a period of 

and loss in proportion to the stage of 

completion of the transaction at the 

reporting date.

(b) Service Support Income

Service support commission income 

from foreign principals is accounted 

for on an accrual basis once the 

shipment is effected.

(c) Other Operating Income

Other operating income comprises 

mainly of gain on disposal of 

property, plant & equipment, bad debt 

recoveries, sale of scrapped items and 

motor vehicle valuation fees, etc.

iii. Expenses

(a) Operating Leases

Leases where the lessor effectively 

retains substantially all the risks and 

rewards of ownership over the lease 

Payments made under operating 

loss on a straight-line basis over the 

term of the lease.

IV. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Costs are recognised as 

an expense in the period in which 

they are incurred, except to the extent 

where borrowing costs that are 

directly attributable to the acquisition, 

construction, or production of a 

qualifying asset that take a substantial 

period of time to get ready for its 

intended use or sale, is capitalised as 

part of that asset.

expenses

Finance income comprise interest 

income on funds invested, dividend 

income and gains on translation of 

foreign currency. Interest income 

it accrues, taking into account the 

effective yield on the asset.

Finance expenses comprises interest 

cost on borrowings and losses on 

translation of foreign currency. The 

and loss using the effective interest 

method.

Dividend income is recognised in 

right to receive payment is established.

V. Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises 

current and deferred tax. Income tax 

to the extent that it relates to items 

directly recognised in equity, in which 

case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable 

on the taxable income for the year, 

using tax rates enacted at the reporting 

date, and any adjustment to tax payable 

in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the 

balance sheet method, providing 

for temporary differences between 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

the carrying amounts of assets and 

purposes and the amounts used 

for taxation purposes. Deferred tax 

is measured at the tax rates that 

are expected to be applied to the 

temporary differences when they 

reverse, based on the laws that have 

been enacted or substantially enacted 

by the reporting date.

5. CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement has been 

prepared using the ‘direct method’.

the purpose of presenting the Cash 

Flow Statement.

6. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER 
THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

All material post Balance Sheet events 

have been considered and where 

appropriate adjustment or disclosure 

has been made according to SLAS 12 

(Revised) - Events after the Balance 

Sheet date in the respective Notes to 

the Financial Statements.

7. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND 
CONTINGENCIES

Capital commitments and contingent 

liabilities of the Group are disclosed 

in respective Notes to the Financial 

Statements. Refer Note 27.

8. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Where necessary comparative 

to conform to the current year’s 

presentation.
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1. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group comprises the following main business segments:
Segment Products & Services

Vehicles - Sale of brand new Passenger Vehicles, 4WD Vehicles, Commercial Vehicles, Special 

Purpose Vehicles and Pre-owned Passenger Vehicles.

Vehicle Parts & Services - Repair of Passenger & Commercial Vehicles, Sale of Vehicle Spare Parts, Accessories, 

Components and Tyres.

Lighting & Power Tools - Sale of Power Tools & Accessories, Lamps, Lighting Fittings and Lighting Accessories.

Construction & Material - Sale & Service of Earth Moving Machinery, Road Construction Machinery, Fork-Lifts, 

Handling Machinery  Racking Systems, Tractors Pumps and Dock Levellers.

- Sale & Service of Telecommunication Equipment, Medical Equipment, Generating 

Sets, Turbines, UPS Equipment, Diesel Engines for Marine Propulsion, Rail Traction, 

Building Technologies, Industrial Refrigeration, Power Generation & Transmission and 

the Business of Travel Agents.

& Services Power Tools Material Handling Activities
Machinery

As at 31st March 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000  Rs. ’000  Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Business Segment Turnover & Results

Total segment revenue 8,838,398 9,041,292 2,430,439 2,104,363 421,211 355,125 1,069,614 1,258,905 532,577 573,845 13,292,239 13,333,530

Inter-segment revenue 434,402 214,446 64,757 32,808 458 948 51,906 57,173 53,427 38,239 604,950 343,614

Total external revenue 8,403,996 8,826,846 2,365,682 2,071,555 420,753 354,177 1,017,708 1,201,732 479,150 535,606 12,687,289 12,989,916

Segment results 602,847 594,895 368,775 368,938 61,805 51,727 91,869 109,693 73,119 69,872 1,198,415 1,195,125

Unallocated income – –  – –  – –  – –  – –  37,900 28,380

Unallocated expenses – –  – –  – –  – –  – –  (377,010) (251,168)

Finance cost - net – –  – – – –  – –  –  (518,143) (462,177)

Income from equity 

   accounted investee – –  – –  – –  – –  – –  3,282 2,658

Income tax expense – –  – –  – –  – –  – –  (139,351) (211,041)

– –  – –  – –  – –  – –  205,093 301,777

Business Segment Assets & Liabilities

Segment assets 2,411,710 2,331,953 975,269 959,235 158,403 134,528 612,617 522,338 269,308 372,262 4,427,307 4,320,316

Investment in equity 

   accounted investee – –  – –  – –  – –  – –  25,011 21,729

Unallocated assets – –  – –  – –  – –  – –  1,378,840 856,587

Total assets  2,411,710 2,331,953 975,269 959,235 158,403 134,528 612,617 522,338 269,308 372,262 5,831,158 5,198,632

Segment liabilities 2,061,305 2,015,164 661,636 479,536 399 2,470 26,277 168,377 290,722 122,288 3,040,339 2,787,835

Unallocated liabilities – –  – –  – –  – –  – –  1,133,668 904,289

Total liabilities 2,061,305 2,015,164 661,636 479,536 399 2,470 26,277 168,377 290,722 122,288 4,174,007 3,692,124

Other Business Segment Information

Capital expenditure 227,342 20,513 219,638 94,357 335 818 1,960 12,194 55,326 19,072 504,601 146,954

Depreciation  12,231 8,364 32,936 22,921 603 373 7,799 6,953 5,340 3,777 58,909 42,388

Non-cash expenses 

   other than depreciation 3,909 5,532 17,067 9,220 1,808 (2,937) 9,704 4,432 5,716 1,161 38,204 17,408
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& Service Power Tools Material Handling Activities
Machinery

As at 31st March 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000  Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Business Segment Cash Flow

Operating activities 520,340 785,497 477,815 83,345 135,600 15,173 106,374 (14,357) (12,527) (44,359) 1,227,602 825,299

Investing activities (227,342) (20,513) (219,638) (88,918) (335) (818) (1,960) (12,194) (55,326) (12,655) (504,601) (135,098)

Unallocated Cash Flows

Common expenses (517,620) (309,381)

Income taxes paid (201,849) (155,186)

Proceeds from disposal of 

   property, plant & 

   equipment  25,424 9,403

Investment in joint venture  – (6,000)

Dividends received 1,913 1,934

Interest received 637 383

Acquisition of construction of 

   property, plant & equipment  (49,410) (155,716)

Proceeds from issue of shares  55,000

Proceeds from long-term loan  400,000 117,670

Repayment of long-term loan  (146,863) (135,905)

Dividends paid  (54,450) (66,363)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash 

   & cash equivalents 180,783 46,040

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business segments. The primary format, business segment, is based on the Group’s 

management and internal reporting structure. Segment results, assets and liabilities include those items directly attributable to a segment as 

well as those that can be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis. Considering activities of the operations, segment information based on 

geographical segments does not arise.

The presentation of segmentation is based on the nature of product line in the context of its domain.

2. OTHER INCOME
Consolidated Company

  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Gain on disposal of property, plant & equipment  10,685 6,293 10,709 6,256

Sundry income 27,215 13,575 25,095 14,453

Reversal of provision for slow moving inventories  – 8,197 – 8,443

   37,900 28,065 35,804 29,152
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3. NET FINANCE COST
Consolidated Company

  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Finance Income

Dividend income 1,913 1,934 1,913 1,934

Interest income 637 383 354 303

   2,550 2,317 2,267 2,237

Finance Costs    

Interest on long-term borrowings (67,915) (58,925) (67,915) (58,925)

Interest on short-term borrowings (446,835) (389,613) (392,938) (357,385)

(3,073) (2,388) (3,073) (2,388)

Net loss on translation of foreign currency  (2,870) (13,568) (8,240) (16,407)

   (520,693) (464,494) (472,166) (435,105)

(518,143) (462,177) (469,899) (432,868)

4. SHARE OF PROFIT OF EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEE - NET OF  TAX
Consolidated

  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Browns Dimo Industrial Products (Pvt) Ltd.      

3,682 2,735

Less: Taxation (400) (77)

3,282  2,658

5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Consolidated Company

  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

     charging/(crediting) all expenses/income 
     including the following:

  Directors’ emoluments 39,123 31,926 36,611 30,403

  Auditor’s Remuneration

     - Audit fee 1,180 950 950 780

     - Audit related services 145 –  145 –  

     - Non-Audit service 766 146 537 101

  Depreciation on property, plant & equipment  84,244 62,957 77,029 58,619

  Amortisation of leasehold property & 

     intangible assets 139 80 139 80

  Amortisation of deferred income  (1,996) (2,284) (1,996) (2,284)

  Legal fees 13,251 16,659 12,625 12,874

  Provision/(reversal) of bad & doubtful debts  6,194 1,630 2,466 1,897

  Provision/(reversal) of slow moving inventories 9,548 (8,197) 7,365 (8,443)

  Donations 628 674 628 674

  Staff expenses (Note 5.2) 573,195 432,159 512,136 385,090
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5.2 Staff Expenses
Consolidated Company

  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

53,222  43,453  46,769  38,614  
27,996  20,008  27,168  19,349 

  Other staff costs 491,977  368,698  438,199  327,127 
   573,195  432,159  512,136  385,090 

  Average number of employees for the year  865  820 761  728 

The average number of employees is calculated by averaging the number of employees as at the year end, in the 
current and in the previous year.

6. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Consolidated Company

  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Current Tax Expense

Current year
- Company  123,646  189,780  123,646  189,780
- Subsidiaries 5,427  16,530  –  –  

   129,073  206,310 123,646  189,780 
Under provision in respect of previous year  –  8,706  –  7,115 

   129,073  215,016  123,646  196,895 
Deferred Tax Expense
Origination/(Reversal) of temporary difference  10,278  (3,975)  9,663 (3,289)
Income tax expense in Income Statement  139,351  211,041  133,309 193,606

Consolidated Company
  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

344,444  512,818  327,978  475,634 
(3,282)  (2,658) – –  

  Tax loss for the year 3,476 5,911 – –  
  Disallowable expenses 149,277  159,871 142,251  148,534
  Capital allowances (112,431)  (68,288) (104,175) (60,685)
  Allowable expenses (8,989)  (17,619) (8,909) (15,346)
  Income not liable to tax (3,908)  (2,825) (3,908) (2,745)
  Statutory Income 368,587 587,210 353,237 545,392
  Tax losses utilised during the period  – –  – –  
  368,587  587,210 353,237 545,392
  Statutory tax rate
     Tax at 15% 908  830 908  830 
     Tax at 35% 126,887  203,417 121,514  187,052 
  Social Responsibility Levy (SRL)  1,278  2,063 1,224  1,898
  Current tax expense 129,073  206,310 123,646  189,780 
  Tax Losses
  At the beginning of the year 5,967 56 – –
  For the year 3,476 5,911 – –
  Utilised during the year – –  – –
  At the end of the year 9,443 5,967 – –

The income tax has been computed in accordance with the Inland Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006. 

Social responsibility levy is 1% of the income tax charge for the year.
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7. EARNINGS PER SHARE

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 

Consolidated Company
  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07

205,093 301,777 194,669 282,028

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (i)  12,100,000 11,715,000 12,100,000 11,715,000

Basic earnings per ordinary share (Rs.)  16.95 25.76 16.09 24.07

Diluted earnings per ordinary share (Rs.)  16.95 25.76 16.09 24.07

(i) Qualifying ordinary shares at the beginning 

     of the year 12,100,000 10,000,000 12,100,000 10,000,000

  Effect of shares issued during the year

     Scrip issue – 1,000,000 – 1,000,000

     Rights issue – 715,000 – 715,000

  Weighted average number of 

     ordinary shares at the year end 12,100,000 11,715,000 12,100,000 11,715,000

There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares outstanding at any time during the year/previous year.

8. DIVIDENDS
Company

   2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Interim - Rs. 1.50/- per share (2006/2007 - Rs. 3/-)  18,150  33,300

Final - Rs. 2.50/- per share (2006/2007 - Rs. 3/-)  30,250  36,300

   48,400  69,600

Dividends per share (Rs.) 4.00  6.00

(2006/2007 - Rs. 3/- per share), at a meeting of the Board of Directors held on 9th May 2008. The Articles of the Company 

on Events after the Balance Sheet date, the approved dividend is not recognised as a liability in the Financial Statements as 

at the reporting date.
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9. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
   Freehold Buildings Plant & Tools & Freehold Leased Computer Electrical Total Total
   Land &  Machinery Implements Motor Motor Hardware Fixtures, 31.03.08 31.03.07
   Premises Vehicles Vehicles & Fittings, & 

   Equipment
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000  Rs. ’000  Rs. ’000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

a) CONSOLIDATED

Cost or Valuation

Balance at the beginning  460,241 232,508 152,812 91,918 159,294 –  92,901 122,365 1,312,039 1,080,039

Additions 89,958 340,628 25,215 24,340 38,393 6,825 7,825 21,299 554,483 305,542

Disposals –  –  (2,069)  (73)  (28,861) – (2,654)  (1,832) (35,489) (73,542)

Balance at year end 550,199 573,136 175,958 116,185 168,826 6,825 98,072 141,832 1,831,033 1,312,039

Depreciation

Balance at the beginning –  41,889 59,092 71,454 71,957 –  59,159 72,116 375,667 370,894

Charge for the year –  9,413 11,922 10,388 30,294 2,116 12,830 7,281 84,244 62,957

On disposals –  –  (1,473)  (26)  (16,074)  –  (2,384)  (793) (20,750) (58,184)

Balance at year end –  51,302 69,541 81,816 86,177 2,116 69,605 78,604 439,161 375,667

Carrying amount at year end 550,199 521,834 106,417 34,369 82,649 4,709 28,467 63,228 1,391,872 936,372

Capital work-in-progress –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 238 3,518

Carrying amount –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 1,392,110 939,890

b) COMPANY

Cost or Valuation

Balance at the beginning 460,241 210,886 133,397 84,490 155,087 –  84,226 113,825 1,242,152 1,051,240

Additions 89,958 335,524 18,067 19,859 38,327 6,825 6,468 16,670 531,698 263,672

Disposals –  –  (2,069)  (73)  (28,795)  –  (2,654)  (283)  (33,874) (72,760)

Balance at year end 550,199 546,410 149,395 104,276 164,619 6,825 88,040 130,212 1,739,976 1,242,152

Depreciation

Balance at the beginning –  40,116 56,248 65,994 69,147 –  54,172 67,829 353,506 352,589

Charge for the year –  8,762 10,259 8,546 29,838 2,116 10,987 6,521 77,029 58,619

On disposals –  – (1,473)  (26)  (16,008) – (2,384)  (181)  (20,072) (57,702)

Balance at year end –  48,878 65,034 74,514 82,977 2,116 62,775 74,169 410,463 353,506

Carrying amount at year end 550,199 497,532 84,361 29,762 81,642 4,709 25,265 56,043 1,329,513 888,646

Capital work-in-progress –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 238 3,518

Carrying amount –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 1,329,751 892,164

Notes

20th August 2004. The valuation of land has been written up to correspond with the market value on the respective date. The purchase cost of the 
land stated as Rs. 346,432,000/- is Rs. 34,910,616/-. 

ii. There are no tax  implications or tax liabilities pertaining to revaluation of land stated in Note i above.

iv. Group property, plant & equipment with cost of Rs. 241 mn (2006/07- Rs. 227 mn) have been fully depreciated and continue to be use by the Group. 
The cost of fully depreciated assets of the Company amounts to Rs. 227 mn (2006/07 Rs. 215 mn).

v. There has been no permanent fall in the value of property, plant & equipment which require a provision.
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10.  LEASEHOLD PROPERTY
Consolidated Company

  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07

Cost

Balance at the beginning 2,400  2,400 2,400  2,400 

Additions – –  – –  

Balance at year end 2,400  2,400 2,400  2,400 

Amortisation        

Balance at the beginning 800  720 800  720 

Amortisation for the year 80  80 80  80 

Balance at year end 880  800 880  800

Carrying amount at year end 1,520  1,600 1,520  1,600

The leasehold land situated at Anuradhapura is on a 30 year lease and expires in 2026.    

   

11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Consolidated Company

  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07

Cost

Balance at the beginning  – –  – –  

Additions 2,808 –  2,808 –  

Disposals – –  – –  

Balance at the year end 2,808 –  2,808 –  

Amortisation        

Balance at the beginning  – –   – –  

Amortisation for  the year 59 –  59 –  

On disposals – –  – –  

Balance at the year end 59 –  59 –  

Carrying amount at year end  2,749 –  2,749 –  

12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Group Company

  Interest  2007/08 2006/07
   % Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Unquoted

Dimo (Pvt) Ltd. - 25,000 ordinary shares   100 250 250

Dimo Industries (Pvt) Ltd. - 500 ordinary shares   100 50 50

Dimo Travels (Pvt) Ltd. - 500 ordinary shares  100 50 50

   350 350

In the opinion of the Directors, the net realisable value of the unquoted investments are higher than their cost.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are given on page 96. 
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13. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURE
Group Company

  Interest  2007/08 2006/07
   % Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

DIMO-KLN Industries (Pvt) Ltd. 50 6,000 6,000
   6,000 6,000

automobiles. The Company commenced its commercial operation in August 2007.

14. INVESTMENT IN EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEE
Group Consolidated Company

  Interest 2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   % Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Unquoted
Browns Dimo Industrial Products (Pvt) Ltd.
675,000 ordinary shares 45 6,750 6,750 6,750 6,750
Group share of net assets 18,261 14,979 –  –   
Group investment in associate (equity basis)  25,011 21,729 6,750 6,750

The  principal activity of the Company is given on page 96.

Equity Accounted Investee Jointly Controlled Entity
  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Revenue 78,666 65,156 1,882 –   
8,182 6,078 (5,616) (3,322)
7,293 5,907 (5,616) (3,322)

Non-current assets 7,601 7,705 6,035 3,157
Current assets 70,704 49,756 5,666 3,733

   78,305 57,461 11,701 6,890

Equity  55,580 48,287 3,061 6,291
Non-current liabilities 13,661 1,464 – –   
Current liabilities 9,064 7,710 8,640 599

   78,305 57,461 11,701 6,890

15. OTHER LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
Consolidated Company

  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Quoted
Hunas Falls Hotels PLC - 900
   ordinary  shares (31.03.07 - 900) 
   (Market value as at 31.03.08 - Rs. 24,750/-)  14 14 7 7
Hatton National Bank PLC - 10,000
   non-voting ordinary shares (31.03.07 - 10,000)
   (Market value as at 31.03.08 - Rs. 512,500/-)  700 700 700 700
Hayleys PLC - Rs. 539,599 
   ordinary shares (31.03.07 - 539,599) 
   (Market value as at 31.03.08 - Rs. 52,745,802/-)  40,964 40,964 40,964 40,964

   41,678 41,678 41,671 41,671

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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16. INVENTORIES
Consolidated Company

  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Stock in trade & work-in-progress 1,772,770 2,126,870 1,699,851 2,038,586
Provision for slow moving inventories (49,998) (40,450) (43,437) (36,072)

   1,722,772 2,086,420 1,656,414 2,002,514
Goods-in-transit 467,034 10,708 467,034 3,168

   2,189,806 2,097,128 2,123,448 2,005,682

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Consolidated Company

  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Trade receivables  2,114,613 1,668,726 1,888,605 1,388,775
Provision for bad debts (82,051) (75,857) (53,419) (50,953)

   2,032,562 1,592,869 1,835,186 1,337,822
Deposits against imports 667 215,750 667 214,260
Deposits and pre-payments 51,129 72,322 33,598 59,870
National Security Levy recoverable 11,930 11,930 11,294 11,294
Other-trade receivables 17,100 24,279 14,690 16,233
Loans to employees 3,927 2,594 3,720 2,344

   2,117,315 1,919,744 1,899,155 1,641,823

18. CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Consolidated Company

  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Bank balances 45,808 171,331 44,215 170,512
Cash in hand 5,414 5,059 5,239 5,009
Cash & cash equivalents 51,222 176,390 49,454 175,521

19. STATED CAPITAL

In accordance with Section 58 of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, which became effective from 3rd May 2007 share 

Consolidated/Company
2007/08 2006/07

Voting Ordinary Shares No. of Shares Rs. ’000 No. of Shares Rs. ’000 

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares   
Balance at the beginning of the year 12,100,000 121,000 10,000,000 100,000
Bonus Issue during the year –  – 1,000,000 10,000
Right Issue during the year – – 1,100,000 11,000
Balance at the end of the year 12,100,000 121,000 12,100,000 121,000

  
Consolidated/Company

  2007/08 2006/07
Share Premium Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Balance at the beginning of the year 61,500 27,500
Utilised for bonus issue during the year – (10,000)
Increase due to right issue during the year – 44,000
Balance at the end of the year 61,500 61,500

Stated Capital at the end of the year 12,100,000 182,500 –
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The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote 

per share at Annual General Meetings of the Company. 

Consolidated Company
  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

19.1 Revaluation Reserve   

  Reserve on revaluation of land 311,522 311,522 311,522 311,522

   

This represents the increase in fair value of the property situated at 65, Jetawana Road, Colombo - 14. This 

property was last revalued in August 2004.   

19.2 General Reserves 1,163,129 1,012,486 1,021,007 880,788

   

The General Reserves represents reserves available for distribution.

20. LONG-TERM INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Non-current portion of the interest bearing loans and borrowings:
Consolidated Company

  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Term Loan (20.1) 547,210 334,032 547,210 334,032

Finance lease obligations (20.2) 6,966 11,514  6,966 11,514

   554,176 345,546 554,176 345,546

Current portion of the interest bearing loans and borrowings:

Term Loan (20.1) 183,492 143,533 183,492 143,533

Finance lease obligations (20.2) 10,047 14,999 10,047 14,999

   193,539 158,532 193,539 158,532

20.1 Term Loan
Consolidated Company

  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

  Non-Current

  At the beginning of the year 477,565 495,800 477,565 495,800

  Loans obtained 

     Unsecured – 117,670 – 117,670

     Secured 400,000 –  400,000 –

   877,565 613,470 877,565 613,470

  Repayments during the year (146,863) (135,905) (146,863) (135,905)

  At the end of the year 730,702 477,565 730,702 477,565

  Transferred to current liabilities 

     (repayable within one year) 183,492 143,533 183,492 143,533

  Long-term portion of long-term loan  547,210 334,032 547,210 334,032
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  Analysis of loans is as follows:
   Amount
   Interest granted Within 1 year 2-5 years Over 5 years 31.03.08 31.03.07
   Rate Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

  LENDER

  Sampath Bank PLC AWPLR 150,000 30,000 15,000 –  45,000 75,000

  Commercial Bank PLC  AWPLR 350,000 69,600 89,000 –  158,600 228,200

   AWPLR+2% 400,000 39,960 160,030 196,680 396,670 –  

  Hatton National Bank PLC AWPLR 217,670 43,932 86,500 –  130,432 174,365

   1,117,670 183,492 350,530 196,680 730,702 477,565

  The property at Weliweriya was pledged against the loan of Rs. 400 mn obtained during the year.

  
20.2 Finance Lease Obligations

Consolidated Company
  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

  Gross liability - at the beginning of the year  31,414 – 31,414 –  

  Obtained during the year 10,052 51,274 10,052 51,274

  Repayments during the year (19,398) (19,860) (19,398) (19,860)

  Gross liability - at the end of the year  22,068 31,414 22,068 31,414

  Finance charges unamortised (5,055) (4,901) (5,055) (4,901)

  Net liability - at the end of the year  17,013 26,513 17,013 26,513

  Transferred to current liabilities

     (repayable within one year) 10,047 14,999 10,047 14,999

6,966 11,514 6,966 11,514

   Leased
   Amount Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 31.03.08 31.03.07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

  LESSOR

  Central Finance 

     Company PLC 1,523 381 317 –  698 –

  Hatton National Bank PLC 8,493 1,699 1,699 3,291 6,689 –

  People’s Leasing 

      Company Ltd. 16,271 3,438 2,025 –  5,463 17,499

  Sampath Bank PLC 15,373 5,124 4,094 –  9,218 13,915

  Total 41,660 10,642 8,135 3,291 22,068 31,414

21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS & LIABILITIES

21.1 Deferred Tax Liabilities
Consolidated Company

  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

  Balance at the beginning of the year  31,327 34,616 31,327 34,616

  Origination/(reversal) of deferred tax   9,805 (3,289) 9,663 (3,289)

  Balance at the end of the year 41,132 31,327 40,990 31,327
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21.2 Deferred Tax Assets
Consolidated

  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

  Balance at the beginning of the year  473 (213)

  Origination/reversal of deferred tax   (615) 686

  Transfer to deferred tax liabilities 142 –

  Balance at the end of the year – 473

Unrecognised deferred tax asset resulting from tax losses carried forward amount to Rs. 3,305,147.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items since it is not probable that future taxable 

22. DEFERRED INCOME
Consolidated Company

  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

At the beginning of the year 3,218 932 3,218 932

Income deferred during the year – 4,570 – 4,570

Amortised during the year (1,996) (2,284) (1,996) (2,284)

Balance at the end of the year 1,222 3,218 1,222 3,218

23. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Consolidated Company

  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
Provision for Retiring Gratuity Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Balance at the beginning of the year 93,753 76,981 86,703 70,445

Charge for the year 27,996 20,008 27,168 19,349

Payments during the year (5,986) (3,236) (5,741) (3,091)

Balance at end of the year 115,763 93,753 108,130 86,703

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Consolidated Company

  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Trade payables 726,024 380,725 714,430 364,006

Advances received 85,375 33,258 85,375 33,258

Interest payable 8,738 1,070 8,738 1,070

Unclaimed dividend 1,980 2,284 1,980 2,284

VAT/Turnover tax payable 121,849 67,704 119,169 64,269

Other payables and accrued expenses 219,578 101,096 179,087 87,398

   1,163,544 586,137 1,108,779 552,285

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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25. INCOME TAX PAYABLE
Consolidated Company

  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

At the beginning of the year 113,001 53,171 111,144 52,218

Current tax expense for the year - Note 6  129,073 215,016 123,646 196,895

   242,074 268,187 234,790 249,113

Tax paid during the year

   Economic Service Charge 62,987 46,202 60,000 44,609

   Income Tax & SRL 138,862 108,984 124,818 93,360

   201,849 155,186 184,818 137,969

Income tax recoverable 9,747 –  – –  

Balance at end of the year 49,972 113,001 49,972 111,144

26. SHORT-TERM INTEREST BEARING BORROWINGS
Consolidated Company

  2007/08 2006/07  2007/08 2006/07
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Short-term bank loans 1,854,733 2,218,243 1,815,101 2,145,342

Bank overdrafts 199,926 142,367 187,394 130,391

   2,054,659 2,360,610 2,002,495  2,275,733 

Unutilised bank facilities as at 31st March 2008 amounted to Rs. 3,321,103,197/- (2006/07 - Rs. 1,692,888,545/-).

Inventories & book debts amounting to Rs. 95,000,000/- are pledged as securities for short-term interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings.

27. COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES

27.1 Capital Expenditure Commitments

Capital expenditure commitments as at 31st March 2008 amounted to Rs. 176,915/-.

27.2 Contingent Liabilities

Legal Claims

can be no assurance, the Directors believe, based on the information currently available, that the ultimate resolution 

positions or liquidity. Accordingly, no provision for any liability has been made in these Financial Statements.

Guarantees

The contingent liability as at 31st March 2008 on guarantees given by Diesel & Motor Engineering PLC, in respect of 

bid bonds and performance bonds amounted to Rs. 320,522,967/-  (2006/07 - Rs. 278,232,395/-).

28 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Identity of the Related Parties

The Company has related party relationship with its subsidiaries, associates, joint venture, key management personnel and 

Hayleys PLC who hold 28% of the Company voting shares.

Transaction with related parties were made on the basis of the price in force with the non related parties.

The Company does not have any parent on its own.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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28.1 Transactions with Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Ventures
    Nature of % of Share Nature of Value of the Balance as at 31st March
   Relationship Holding Transactions Transactions 2008 2007

     Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Dimo (Pvt) Ltd. Subsidiary 100% Sales 1,059 62,259 127,903
   Purchases 17,682
   Recovery of
     expenses 16,673

Dimo Industries (Pvt) Ltd. Subsidiary 100% Recovery of
      expenses 2,508 47,738 39,714

Dimo-KLN Industries (Pvt) Ltd. Joint Venture 50% Recovery of 
      expenses 1,021 3,879 587

Receivables from subsidiaries and 
   Joint Ventures   113,876 168,204

Dimo Travels (Pvt) Ltd. Subsidiary 100% Recovery of
      expenses 76 392 467

Amount payable to subsidiaries    392 467

Outstanding balances with Related Parties at balance sheet date are not secured .

The guarantees & letter of credit taken on behalf of Dimo (Pvt) Ltd. amounted to Rs. 72,249,201/-.

No provisions were made for bad and doubtful debts or write-off against any related parties.

28.2 Transactions with Key Management Personnel
Key management personnel comprise the members of the Board of Directors of the Company.

(a) The compensation of Key Management Personnel are as follows:
For the year ending 31.03.2008 31.03.2007

  Executive Non-Executive Executive Non-Executive
  Directors Directors Directors Directors

Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000

36,573 2,550 30,164 1,762

   provision for retiring gratuity 4,313 – 3,067 –

the year.

Executive directors are entitled for a structured incentive scheme which is linked to performance.

(b) Loans to Key Management Personnel

No loans were given to key management personnel during the year. 

(c) Key Management Personnel Share holding of the Company

The shareholding of the key management personnel together with their close family members are disclosed on 

page 97 - Annual Report of the Board of Directors.

28. 3 Transactions with Close Family Members

There were no transactions with the Close Family Members during the year.

29. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

No events have arisen since the Balance Sheet date which would require adjustment to or disclosure in the 

Financial Statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31st March 1999  2000  2001  2002  2003  2004  2005  2006  2007 2008
  Rs. ’000  Rs. ’000  Rs. ’000  Rs. ’000  Rs. ’000  Rs. ’000  Rs. ’000  Rs. ’000  Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 

Results

Group turnover 1,592,399 1,494,939 2,686,939 1,843,662 3,404,734 4,796,905 7,565,327  10,512,326 12,989,916 12,687,289

344,444

(139,351)

205,093

Capital Employed

182,500

–  

–  

311,522

Revenue reserves 200,978 264,956 314,846 325,076 363,869 432,634 566,836  777,009 1,012,486 1,163,129

1,657,151

2,802,374

Net Capital Employed 819,630 922,318 1,022,793 1,171,391 1,480,616 1,700,484 2,614,773 4,012,189 4,371,196 4,459,525

Assets Employed

1,463,068

4,368,090

(1,222)

(1,370,411)

Net Assets Employed 819,630 922,318 1,022,793 1,171,391 1,480,616 1,700,484 2,614,773 4,012,189 4,371,196 4,459,525

Net Cash Flow

520,706

(519,212)

179,289

180,783

Key Indicators

16.95

136.95

88.75

13

48,400

4

5

4.00

(2)

1.26

2.84

*    *Scrip issue of one for every four shares held was made during the year 2000/01. Scrip issue of one for every nine shares held was made during  the year 2004/05. 

Scrip issue of one for every ten shares was made during the year 2006/07.

** Rights issue of one ordinary share for every two ordinary shares held was made in August 2003. Earning per share has been adjusted accordingly.

TEN YEAR SUMMARY
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1. STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

2.  SHAREHOLDERS

  0 - 500 846 96,064 0.79 12 2,307 0.02 858 98,371 0.81
  501 - 1,000  110 79,902 0.66 4 3,029 0.03 114 82,931 0.69
  1,001 - 5,000  157 319,427 2.64 7 13,012 0.11 164 332,439 2.75
  5,001 - 10,000  22 159,738 1.32 1 5,500 0.05 23 165,238 1.37
  10,001 - 20,000  12 162,074 1.34 1 12,222 0.1 13 174,296 1.44

  30,001 - 40,000  7 244,551 2.02 1 31,649 0.26 8 276,200 2.28

  100,001 - 1,000,000  17 5,105,553 42.19 1 114,759 0.95 18 5,220,312 43.14

  Total   1,197 11,917,522 98.48 27 182,478 1.52 1,224 12,100,000 100.00

  31st March 2008

  No. of
Share- No. of

  holders Shares

1,138 6,890,686 56.95 818 5,746,734 57.47

86 5,209,314 43.05 69 4,253,266 42.53

1,224 12,100,000 100.00 887 10,000,000 100.00

3. MARKET VALUE OF SHARES

4. DIVIDEND PAYMENTS
   2008 2007
   Rs. mn

18.15 36

30.25 36

SHARE INFORMATION
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5. SHARE TRADING INFORMATION FROM 1ST APRIL TO 31ST MARCH

  2008 2007  2006  2005

125.00 (April 16,2007)
  (April 19,2007)
  (April 21,2007)

78.00 (Dec. 28,2007)
602 902  2,241  1,536

319,000 400,000  1,249,300  728,000

30,051,050 50,471,950  163,854,550  66,423,875
162 197  213  174
239 240  241  234

2.64 3.31  12.49  7.28
2,550.5 2,789.8  2,264.40  1,751.88
3,181.3 3,837.6  2,877.70  2,392.19
2,873.2 3,360.9  2,067.30  1,153.75

6. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

5,318,912 5,302,892  3,388,464  3,373,364
43.96 43.83  33.88  33.73

7. HISTORY OF SHARE ISSUES

8. CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR SPOUSES DURING 2007/08

As at 31.03.08

1,882,095 15.55

170,755 1.41

399,134 3.30

383,545 3.17

219,778 1.82

328,170 2.71

3,383,477 27.96

SHARE INFORMATION
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9. MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS  AS AT
  31st March 2008

Total Shares %

3,397,611 28.08

1,195,667 9.88

971,798 8.03

910,297 7.52

417,640 3.45

392,278 3.24

352,249 2.91

339,380 2.80

327,476 2.71

191,284 1.58

178,745 1.48

170,755 1.41

164,376 1.36

154,100 1.27

136,886 1.13

131,931 1.09

109,632 0.91

116,515 0.96

114,759 0.95

103,500 0.86

  9,876,879 81.62  9,850,797 81.41

SHARE INFORMATION
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BRANCH NETWORK

01 02 03

04 05 06

07 08 09
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HISTORICAL NOTE
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CHINA

FRANCE

GERMANY

KEY PRINCIPALS

INDIA

ITALY

JAPAN

MALAYSIA

SINGAPORE

SOUTH KOREA

UK

USA
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KEY PRINCIPALS

PRINCIPALS REPRESENTED AND DURATION OF RELATIONSHIP  

Name Country Brands No. of Years
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  2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

20 19.8 19.7 19.5 19.3
7.4 7.5 8.1 8.0 7.6

49.8 51.2 48.3 48.6 48.9
6 6.5 7.7 8.3 8.4

3,540 2,898 2,423 2,070 1,806
1,617 1,421 1,241 1,062 981

6.8 7.7 6.2 5.4 5.9
17.5 13.7 11.6 7.6 6.33
(7.7)
(4.2)

5.3 4.7 5.7 5.2 5.8

13 12.7 7.9 11.6 11.6
51.8 50.3 53.3 61.8 62.4

INTEREST RATES
(percentage per annum at end-year)

21.3 12.76 10.10 7.25 7.35
19.96 12.96 10.37 7.65 7.24
10.5 10 8.75 7.5 7

12 11.5 10.25 9 8.5

17.95 15.19 12.2 10.2 9.3
10.31 7.6 6.2 5.3 5.3

110.62 103.96 100.5 101.19 96.52
108.72 107.71 102.12 104.61 96.74

2,541 2,722.4 1,922.2 1,506.9 1,062.1
3,291.9 3,711.8 2,451.1 2,073.7 1,897.8

104,985 105,154 114,599 59,052 73,6577
820.7 834.8 584.0 382.1 262.8

29 30 25 19 15

COUNTRY INFORMATION
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2007 2006 2005 2007 2006

6.00 10.30 17.20 3.30 6.30
31.60 29.70 27.00 7.60 8.10
62.40 60.00 55.80 7.70 7.70

100.00 100.00 100.00 6.8 7.7

Electricity

Communications
Telephone Density

 Nurses per 10,000 persons 11

(area covered by a school)
(Government schools)

(Age 5-19 years)

(Age 20-24 years)

ATMs per 100,000 persons 7.1

COUNTRY INFORMATION

Source: Central Bank Annual Report 2007 of Sri Lanka. 
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Sources: Central Bank of Sri Lanka Annual Reports/KMPG Budget Highlights

COUNTRY INFORMATION



DIESEL & MOTOR ENGINEERING PLC Annual Report 2007/08139

    

1. STRATEGY AND ANALYSIS

Chairman &  CEO’s Review

    Sustainability Report 6-9/45-70

Corporate Information

Business Performance 16-36

Corporate Information

Not applicable

Corporate Information

Business Performance 16-36

Group Structure 93

Business Performance 16-36

Chairman’s &  CEO’s Review 6-9

31st March 2008 N/A

31st March 2007 N/A

Twelve Months N/A

Sustainability Report 45-70

Sustainability Report 45-70

Sustainability Report 45-70

Assurance Report on Sustainability Report 70

  

Governance

Enterprise Governance 71-81

Enterprise Governance 71-81

Enterprise Governance 71-81

Enterprise Governance 71-81

Remuneration Committee Report 91

Enterprise Governance 71-81

Enterprise Governance 71-81

Vision & Strategy/Sustainability Report 13

Enterprise Risk Management 84-88

Enterprise Governance 71-81

GRI COMPLIANCE INDEX
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Not Reported

Sustainability Report 45-70

Sustainability Report 45-70

Sustainability Report 45-70

  

5. ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Sustainability Report 45-70

Not Applicable

Notes to the Accounts 124

None

Sustainability Report 45-70

Sustainability Report 45-70

  

Sustainability Report 45-70

Sustainability Report

Sustainability Report 45-70

Sustainability Report 45-70

Sustainability Report 45-70

Sustainability Report 45-70

Sustainability Report 45-70

Sustainability Report 45-70

Sustainability Report 45-70

Not Applicable 

Not Reported

  

7. SOCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

 a) Labour Practices and Decent Work

Sustainability Report 45-70

Sustainability Report 45-70

Sustainability Report 45-70

Sustainability Report 45-70

Sustainability Report 45-70

Not Reported

GRI COMPLIANCE INDEX
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 b) Human Rights

Investment and Procurement Practices

Not Reported

Nil

Non-Discrimination

Not Reported

Not Reported

Child Labour

Sustainability Report 45-70

Not Reported

Not Reported 

Nil

 c) Society

Community

Sustainability Report 45-70

Not Reported

 Public Policy

Not Applicable

 d) Product Responsibility

Sustainability Report 45-70

None

Marketing Communications

Sustainability Report 45-70

None

Customer Privacy

None

Nil

GRI COMPLIANCE INDEX
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GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL TERMS

Accrual Basis

Capital Employed

Current Ratio

Deferred Taxation

Equity

turnover.

Market Capitalisation

Materiality
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Net Assets per Share

Stated Capital

Total Shareholder Return

Treasurership

GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL TERMS
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Secretary

NOTICE OF MEETING
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INSTRUCTIONS AS TO COMPLETION

FORM OF PROXY



NAME OF THE COMPANY
Diesel & Motor Engineering PLC

LEGAL FORM
A Quoted Public Company with Limited 
Liability, Incorporated in Sri Lanka in 1945.

COMPANY REGISTRATION NUMBER
PQ 146

FOUNDED
1939

ACCOUNTING YEAR END
31st March

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
The ordinary shares of the Company are 
listed with the Colombo Stock Exchange of 
Sri Lanka.

AUDITORS
KPMG Ford, Rhodes, Thornton & Co.
Chartered Accountants, 
P.O. Box 186,
Colombo, Sri Lanka.

INTERNAL AUDITORS
SJMS Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
2, Castle Street, 
Colombo 4, Sri Lanka.

LAWYERS
F J & G De Saram & Company
Attorneys-at-Law 
No. 216, De Saram Place, 
Colombo 10, Sri Lanka.

BANKERS
Hatton National Bank PLC
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
NDB Bank PLC
Citibank N.A.
Nations Trust Bank PLC

Hongkong & Shanghai 
   Banking Corporation Ltd.
Sampath Bank PLC
Bank of Ceylon

COMPANY SECRETARY
B.C.S.A.P. Gooneratne, F.C.A., M.B.A. (Sri J.)

REGISTRARS
Corporate Services Ltd.
No. 216, De Saram Place,
Colombo 10, Sri Lanka

HEAD AND REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O. Box 339, No. 65, Jetawana Road,
Colombo 14, Sri Lanka.
Telephone: 0094-11-2449797, 
   0094-11-2338883
http: //www.dimolanka.com
E-mail: dimo@dimolanka.com
Facsimile: 0094-11-2449080

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RATING
The Company received a rating of 6 (CG)
from Det Norske Veritas (DNV).
(in 2007)
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